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Chairman's Report
F 0 oA

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Crown International Corporation Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”), I am pleased to
present the final results of the Company and the Group for the financial

year ended 31 March 2018 (“Year 2018” or the “Year”).

As of 31 March 2018, the total assets of the Group reached approximately
HK$2,864 million, and profit for the Year grew steadily by approximately
33.7% to approximately HK$109 million.

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of property investment,
hotel operation, financial advisory service and property development (which
was newly acquired during the Year), in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

The Group acquired a hotel development project (the “Weihai Property”)
in Weihai, the PRC, during the Year. Upon completion of construction
and renovation works (expected to be in or about mid-2020), the Weihai
Property will have a total of approximately 195,000 square metres of gross
floor area with over 1,600 hotel suites and 360 car parking spaces. The
Group resolved that approximately 130,000 square metres of the gross
floor area of the Weihai Property shall be renovated and sold as serviced
apartments (“Serviced Apartments”). According to a report issued by a
firm of independent valuers engaged by the Group (“Valuation Report”),
based on (among other things) the current property price levels in Weihai,
the aggregate market value of the Serviced Apartments is expected to be
approximately RMB1.62 billion. A vast majority of the remaining floor
area will be developed as hotel and related retail premises and carparking
spaces. According to the Valuation Report, the aggregate market value of
such hotel and related retail premises and car-parking spaces is expected to
reach approximately RMB570 million. The Group believes that the Weihai
Property will become a new source of income and generate stable cash flow

for the Group in the near future.
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Chairman's Report (Continued)

During the year of 2017 (“Year 2017” or “Last Year”), the Group tapped
into the new financial advisory business segment, assisting real estate
developers in the PRC in obtaining financing from financial institutions
and charging commission for such services. However, the financial advisory
business did not perform as expected and did not contribute any revenue
to the Group during the Year as the PRC government tightened its control
on real estate financing and enacted regulations which imposed further
restriction on financing real estate developers. Nevertheless, the management
believes that other business can be carried out in the financial advisory
business segment in the PRC. Therefore, the Group will actively explore
other new models for its financial advisory business to expand its service
scope, with a view to embrace market opportunities and challenges as well as

facilitating the sustainable and sound development of the business.

The Group creates long-term value based on its prudent and sound
governance principles and risk management. It has laid a solid foundation
for its long-term development by continuously ensuring asset quality
and financial resources. With its reliable risk management, it will be
able to grasp every opportunity and cope with the ever-changing market
environment flexibly. Building on its effective risk control, it is also carefully
planning for its future, actively expanding its operation and striving for new

business opportunities.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to take this opportunity to extend our
utmost gratitude to our valued clients, Shareholders and all of the business
associates for their continued support for and confidence in the Group.
I also wish to express our sincere appreciation to our management and

employees as a whole for their positive efforts over the past years.

Mr. MENG Jin Long

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B ) aw M o3 B

BUSINESS REVIEW

Introduction

During Year 2018, the Group was principally engaged in the business
of property investment, hotel operations, financial advisory service and
property development (acquired during Year 2018) in the PRC. The Group
also took steps to maintain its business of providing financial advisory

service in the PRC.

Property Investment

The Group’s current investments in commercial properties consist of the

following:

. The commercial building in Yingkou, the PRC (the “Yingkou
Property”);

. The hotel complex in Jinggangshan City, Jiangxi Province, the PRC
(the “Jinggangshan Property”), which has been leased by the Group

to a local lessee for hotel businesses operation; and

e The commercial and residential complex in Zhongshan, the PRC (the

“Zhongshan Property”).

Hotel operations

The Group’s current investments in hotel operations consist of the hotel

development acquired by the Group in September 2017 in Weihai, the PRC.

On 13 September 2017, the Group completed the purchase of 100% equity
interest in Jumbo China Investment Group Limited (the “Jumbo China”),
which in turn owned the Weihai Property, for the issue and allotment of
260,000,000 new shares in the Company. The said acquisition offered
the Group the access to a high-end development of three high rise hotel
buildings with a total of approximately 195,000 square metres of gross
floor area, or over 1,600 hotel suites and serviced apartment units and 360
car parking spaces. Further information regarding the said acquisition was
published in the Company’s announcements dated 13 September 2016 and

13 September 2017, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The Group’s hotel operations comprise approximately 200 hotel suites in
the Weihai Property to be managed by a world-renowned American hotel
group as hotel manager under the management agreement between the

Group and the said hotel group.

Property development

The Group’s current investment in property development comprises
approximately 1,400 serviced apartment units in the Weihai Property to be

developed and sold by the Group.

Financial advisory service

In Year 2017, the Group began engaging in the provision of financial
services in assisting real estate developers in the PRC to obtain financing

from financial institutions, and charged commissions for such services.

The Group sought to maintain and grow the financial advisory service
business in the first half of Year 2018. Subsequently, the PRC promulgated
regulations which further restricted provision of financing to real estate
developers. As a result, no new client has been engaged by the Group in Year

2018, and the segment has not generated significant revenue in Year 2018.

The Group will continue to explore the financial market in the PRC for any
opportunity to provide new services and introduce new sources of income

for the Company.

A. The Group’s Property Investment

(i)  The Yingkou Property

The Yingkou Property is a 16-storey commercial building situated
in Yingkou, the PRC. The gross floor area of the Yingkou
Property is approximately 10,740 square metres, and is owned
by “U” Inns (Yingkou) Hotel Management Corporation Limited
(the “Yingkou Subsidiary”), a subsidiary of the Company. The
Yingkou Subsidiary entered into two separate lease agreements in

relation to the Yingkou Property.

On 21 September 2010, the Yingkou Subsidiary as lessor entered
into a lease agreement with a bank as lessee in relation to the
second to fourth floors, as well as part of the ground floor area,
of the Yingkou Property. The lease was for ten (10) years, with an
annual rental of RMB1.68 million for the first five (5) years and
an annual rental of RMB1.764 million for the remaining five (5)

years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

B ) M o A ()

3

(i)

On 1 November 2013, the Yingkou Subsidiary as lessor entered
into a lease agreement with a local lessee in relation to the fifth
to sixteenth floors, as well as part of the ground floor area, of the
Yingkou Property. The lease was for nine (9) years, with an initial
annual rental of RMB1.2 million for the first 3 years of the lease.
The annual rental shall increase by 6% after the expiration of
each three (3)-year period after the commencement date of the

lease.

The Yingkou Property is currently fully occupied due to the
abovementioned two leases. The Group considers that the

operations of the Yingkou Property has entered a stable stage.

The Group does not expect any material change to the operation
of the Yingkou Property for the duration of the current leases

until 2020 and 2022 respectively.

The Jinggangshan Property

The Jinggangshan Property is a hotel complex situated in
Jinggangshan City, Jiangxi Province, the PRC. The hotel complex

has a gross floor area of approximately 9,600 square metres.

On 7 June 2017, the Group entered into a lease agreement over
the Jinggangshan Property with a local lessee for a period of ten
(10) years (which commenced on 8 December 2017, after the
expiry of a customary rent-free period of six (6) months) until
7 December 2027. Under the terms of the lease agreement, the
local lessee shall operate hotel businesses in the hotel complex.
The local lessee undertakes to renovate and maintain the hotel
complex, and to ensure that the post-renovation complementary
facilities are able to achieve 3-Star or above in accordance
with relevant PRC standards. The lessee shall pay not less than
RMB10 million in renovation expenditures, and the Group
shall subsequently reimburse the renovation expenditures of up
to RMB10 million over the life of the lease. As of 31 March
2018, the lessee had incurred approximately RMB7.9 million in

renovation expenditures.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2017/2018
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(iii)

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

B B ) M o AT (AR

The management of the Company (the “Management”)
considered that, among the offers made by potential lessees, the
terms entered into by the Group and the said local lessee, which
would provide the Group with not only a source of stable rental
income, but also deferred payment of costs in relation to the
substantial renovation expenditures of its hotel complex, was

favourable to the Group.

The renovation work arranged by the local lessee is almost
complete as of the date of this annual report, and the hotel
complex is expected to commence operations in the second
quarter of the financial year ended 31 March 2019 (“Year
2019”). Accordingly, the Group’s operations of the Jinggangshan
Property have also entered a stable stage. The Group does not
expect any material change to the operation of the Jinggangshan

Property for the duration of the current lease until 2027.

The Group considered its operation of the Jinggangshan Property
a successful model which may be adopted in other investment
properties of the Group, including the Zhongshan Property.
This helps bring stable rental income to the Group whilst also
improves the cash flow of the Group by spreading the renovation

expenses borne by the Group over the life of the lease(s).

The Zhongshan Property

The Zhongshan Property is a multi-purpose complex comprising
retail floors on the lower levels, and commercial accommodation

floors on the levels above.

In 2015, the Group acquired the Zhongshan Property for
investment purpose. When the acquisition was completed, the
Group considered the commercial accommodation floors of the
Zhongshan Property were suitable for budget hotel and serviced
apartment purposes, and the retail floors were suitable for leasing

to tenants of retail and food and beverage business.

Due to the consistently rising property market in Zhongshan
since 2015, the Zhongshan Property has recorded a substantial
accumulative increase in market value since its acquisition by
the Group based on revaluations of the Zhongshan Property
undertaken by an independent property valuer engaged by the

Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

B ) M o A ()
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The Group observed that in the second half of Year 2018,
the price level of residential properties in Zhongshan tended
to stabilize with a mild growth level. The Group considered
that external factors (such as (i) the recent development of the
Shenzhen-Zhongshan Bridge and the Zhongshan metro which
are expected to shorten the traveling time from Zhongshan to
Shenzhen and Foshan respectively when completed, and (ii) the
fact that the current average property prices per square metre
in Zhuhai, a neighbouring city of Zhongshan, was still at a
significant premium over that of Zhongshan) would sustain a
stable and moderate growth in both sale price and rental levels of

residential properties in Zhongshan in the near future.

Based on the experience the Group gained in operating the
Jinggangshan Property, in the second half of Year 2018 the Group
focused on sourcing suitable tenants willing to lease the entire
Zhongshan Property for an extended duration, and provide
finance for the renovations of the Zhongshan Property which
shall be reimbursed by the Group throughout the life of the lease.
During Year 2018 the Group entered into negotiations with a
number of such potential lessees. The Group expects to enter into
formal lease with one of the potential lessees in the first half of
Year 2019. This helps bring stable rental income to the Group
whilst also improves the cash flow of the Group by spreading the

renovation expenses borne by the Group over the life of the lease.

In Year 2018, for reasons given below, the Group only incurred
minor refurbishment and site cleaning expenses in relation to
maintenance of the Zhongshan Property. There was no significant

environmental impact generated.

As the refurbishment work, including the design and the floor
layout plan of the Zhongshan Property, will be arranged by the
lessee if the Zhongshan Property is leased out in its entirety as
planned, the Group resolved that the negotiation with potential
contractors for refurbishment work of the Zhongshan Property
be halted or slowed down until the Group has confirmed all
the commercial terms with a potential lessee, which is currently
expected to occur within the first half of Year 2019. Should the
negotiations with the potential lessees fail to materialize, the
Group will recommence its search for suitable contractors to

refurbish the residential units of the Zhongshan Property for sale.

.._‘_..%‘
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The Group’s Hotel Operations

The Weihai Property

The Weihai Property consists of three high rise hotel buildings with
a total of approximately 195,000 square metres of gross floor area, or

over 1,600 hotel suites and 360 car parking spaces.

To capture opportunities in the property market in Weihai, the PRC
and to bring stable long-term income for the benefit of the Group
and its Sharcholders, on 13 September 2016 the Group entered into
a sale and purchase agreement (the “SP Agreement’) in relation
to the acquisition (the “Acquisition”) of 100% equity interest in
Jumbo China Investment Group Limited, which owned the Weihai
Property, for a consideration of HK$500 million. The Acquisition was
completed on 13 September 2017. Construction and renovation works
commenced in April 2016. Upon completion of such works (expected
to be in or about mid-2020), the Weihai Property would expect to have
an aggregate gross floor area of approximately 195,000 square metres,
providing over 1,600 hotel suites and 360 parking spaces. The main
building of the Weihai Property is expected to stand approximately
150 metres in height, making it a landmark along the Golden Beach in
Weihai.

The Group plans to develop a vast majority of the remaining floor
areas of the Weihai Property as hotel and related retail premises and
carparking spaces. According to the Valuation Report, the aggregate
market value of such hotel and related retail premises and car-parking

spaces are expected to reach approximately RMB570 million.

When the Group completed the acquisition of the Weihai Property
in September 2017, it acquired, along with the Weihai Property, the
benefit of a management agreement with a world-renowned American
hotel group as hotel manager. Under the said management agreement,
hotel manager will, among other things, provide certain consultancy,
design and monitoring services in the course of the development of
the hotel floors, and manage the operation of, the hotel premises after
completion of the development. The hotel is expected to achieve 5-star
standard in accordance with relevant international standards, and

target high-end business and leisure travelers.

The hotel complex is under construction at the moment. Upon
completion of the construction and renovation works (expected to
be in or about mid-2020), the hotel is expected to provide over 200

luxury suites and rooms.
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The Group’s investment in Property Development

The Weihai Property

The Management observed that Weihai has become a popular
destination for the retired population in recent years which, coupled
with the rapid growth of the tourism sector, has resulted in a consistent
influx of migrants and an increased demand for properties. The
Management considered such development in Weihai will continue to
benefit its hotel industry and local property market. The Management
observed a steady growth in the average property price level in Weihai.
The Management will take steps to ensure the Weihai Property adheres

to its development timetable.

In light of the above, the Group resolved that approximately 130,000
square metres of the gross floor area of the Weihai Property shall be
renovated and sold as serviced apartments. According to a report issued
by a firm of independent valuers engaged by the Group, based on
(among other things) the current property price levels in Weihai, the
aggregate market value of such serviced apartments is approximately

RMB1.62 billion.

The Group plans to commence pre-sale of the serviced apartment units
upon issue of the relevant pre-sale permits by the local authorities

(expected in the second quarter of the Year 2019).

The Group has entered into an exclusive agency agreement with a
nationally renowned property sales agency group in the PRC, who will
commence marketing the serviced apartment units upon grant of the

pre-sale permits.

Financing of development of the Weihai Property

It is expected that the initial costs for development of the Weihai

property will amount to roughly RMB1.0 billion.

Part of the Group’s plan to finance the development of the Weihai
Property is pre-sale of the serviced apartment as disclosed above.
Permits by the local authorities are expected to be issued in the second

quarter of the Year 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

To finance the construction and renovation costs of the Weihai
property, on 20 July 2017 the Group entered into an entrusted loan
agreement with an independent third party, under which the said
lender granted the Group a loan facility of the aggregate principal
amount of RMB150 million. On 11 September 2017, the Group also
entered into a cooperation agreement with the main contractor of the
development, under which the said contractor shall assist in financing
part of the development cost of the Weihai Property until completion

of the development.

The Management considered that the Weihai Property would be
sufficiently financed through (i) the cash flow generated by pre-
sale of the serviced apartments; (ii) loan facility agreements such as
the abovementioned loan facility; (iii) cooperation agreements with
contractors under which the contractors will finance the development
costs in return for interests payable by the Group; and (iv) other capital

arrangements as may be entered into by the Group from time to time.

D. The Group’s Financial Advisory Services D.

The Group has established a financial consultancy business in certain
rapidly developing provinces in the PRC, which provided business
and finance consultancy services to, and sourced debt financing for,

property developers and other businesses in need of financing.

As disclosed above, the Group’s efforts to grow its debt financing
sourcing service business came to a halt in the Year 2018 due to
adverse changes in the regulatory environment in the PRC. As
disclosed above, the Group will continue to explore the financial
market in the PRC for any opportunity to provide new services and

introduce new sources of income for the Company.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenues
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Revenues amounted to approximately HK$5.0 million for Year 2018, R AR AR A 255,01 # W IC » 1
representing a decrease of approximately HK$7.0 million or 58.3% as P BREEL12.08 BB TS R7.0H

compared to that of approximately HK$12.0 million for Year 2017. The

decrease of revenues was mainly attributable to the decrease in financial
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advisory service income, no revenue had been generated from financial A il R T b N SR AT M 2R (= F— L
advisory service in the Year 2018 (Year 2017: approximately HK$8.7 R HI8TH EWETT) o

million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses amounted to approximately HK$1.8 million for
Year 2018, representing a decrease of approximately HK$28.2 million or
94% as compared to that of approximately HK$30.0 million for Year 2017.
The decrease in other operating expenses was mainly attributable to the net
exchange gain amounting to approximately HK$16.1 million (Year 2017:
net exchange loss HK$9.2 million).

Finance costs

Finance costs amounted to approximately HK$1.9 million for Year 2018,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$6.0 million or approximately
75.9% as compared to that of approximately HK$7.9 million for Year 2017.
The decrease of finance costs was solely attributable to the decrease in

imputed interest expenses amounting to approximately HK$6.0 million.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

For Year 2018, the Group recorded a net profit attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$108.7 million (Year 2017: approximately
HK$81.2 million). Total comprehensive income attributable to owners
of the Company was approximately HK$276.9 million (Year 2017:
approximately HK$1.9 million).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

For Year 2018, the Group’s sources of fund primarily included income
generated from business operations, issue of new shares, and borrowing from
a third party, which were used in our business operations and investment

and development of projects.

The Group expects that income generated from business operations and
borrowings will continue to be the main sources of funds in the coming year.
Therefore, the Group will continue to strengthen cash flow management,
improve the efficiency of capital returns on projects and stringently control
the cost and various expenses. Besides, the Group will continue to look for
opportunities to cooperate with foreign and domestic investors, in order to
provide other sources of funding for the expansion of projects and business

development.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$43.6 million as compared to the bank balances and cash
of approximately HK$85.3 million as at 31 March 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The Group had net current assets amounting to approximately HK$522.0
million as at 31 March 2018, against approximately HK$64.6 million as at
31 March 2017. The Group’s current ratio (i.e. current assets divided by
current liabilities) was approximately 6.0 as at 31 March 2018 as compared

with approximately 3.0 as at 31 March 2017.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s net debt gearing ratio (i.e. net debt
divided by total equity) was at a healthy level of approximately 5.4% (31
March 2017: N/A). Net debt comprises total borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents. Total equity comprises owners’ equity as stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditure of the Group for Year 2018 included expenditure on
fixed assets and investment properties of approximately HK$40.1 million
(Year 2017: approximately HK$0.3 million) and approximately HK$7.8
million (Year 2017: approximately HK$7.8 million) respectively.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2018,

(a) the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities or

guarantees (31 March 2017: Nil); and

(b) the Group had operating lease commitments of approximately

HKS$16.1 million (31 March 2017: approximately HK$6.2 million).

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s land use right on a piece of land located
in Weihai City, PRC and the equity interest of a subsidiary were pledged
to an independent third party to secure for borrowings with outstanding

amount of approximately HK$160.0 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The normal operations and investments of the Group are mainly in the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC (“Hong Kong”)
and the PRC, with revenue and expenditure denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi. The Directors believe that the Group does not have
significant foreign exchange exposure. However, if necessary, the Group will
consider using forward exchange contracts to hedge against foreign exchange
exposures. As at 31 March 2018, the Group has no significant foreign

exchange exposure.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Except for the completion of the Jumbo China Acquisition, there was no
material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies by

the Group for Year 2018.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group did not hold any significant investments
(31 March 2017: Nil).

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a total of 45 employees (31 March
2017: 33 employees), including Executive Directors. The remuneration and
staff cost for Year 2018 were approximately HK$14.1 million (Year 2017:
approximately HK$13.6 million). The Group’s remuneration policy and
packages for the Executive Directors and senior management are determined
by the remuneration, quality and nomination committee of the Company
(the “RQNC”) while those for other employees are reviewed and approved
by the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”). The Group remunerates
its employees based on industry practice and the performance of each
individual. The Group also offers discretionary bonuses, medical insurance
and defined contribution retirement plans, and provides a share option

scheme for its employees and Executive Directors.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed above, the Group has no other significant investments held

as at 31 March 2018.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

After having completed the acquisition of the Weihai Property, the Group
plans to commit more capital and efforts on the Weihai Property. This

includes:

e Closely monitoring the construction, renovation and marketing
progress of the hotels and serviced apartments of the Weihai Property,
and operating the Weihai Property in accordance with the Group’s

development strategies; and

. Proactively looking for land in the proximity of the Weihai Property
for the expansion of the Weihai Property. The Management considers
developing such land will create synergy with the development of the

Weihai Property and maximize its potential.

After completions of the sale of the residential apartment units of the
Weihai Property, the Group plans to acquire lands in the proximity
in the Weihai Property, when any such opportunity is identified and
considered suitable by the Group. The Management plans to source
investors and/or external financing, as well as proceeds from completed
sale of the residential apartment units (insofar as not utilized to
cover the development costs of the Weihai Property) to finance such

acquisition.

The Group will continue sourcing landed properties in other areas in the
PRC which are experiencing rapid economic and/or population growth,
so as to bring resale revenue and/or stable rental income to the Group.
The Group considers that in such areas, factors including governmental
policies and/or plans of economic and/or tourist industry development,
have facilitated the growth of sectors which are reliant on increased
population and capital flows such as office rental and commercial property

development, hotel operations and financial service sectors.

Although the Group is unable to expand its business of debt financing
sourcing service due to regulatory changes, the management observes a
growing demand for other types of financial and business advisory services
in the PRC. The Group will continue to explore the PRC market, and seek
to identify any opportunity to offer other types of financial services to the

market.
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Directors’ Biographies

= HM

Executive Directors

Mr. MENG Jin Long (“Mr. Meng”), Chairman of the Board, Chairman
of the Executive Committee and Member of the RQNC

Aged 33, Mr. Meng was appointed as a non-executive Director of the
Company (a “NED”) on 27 May 2014. He was re-designated as an
Executive Director on 19 September 2014 and is a member of each of the
executive committee of the Company (the “Executive Committee”) and
the RQNC. Mr. Meng was further appointed as the Chairman of the Board
(the “Chairman”) and the chairman of the Executive Committee on 31
March 2015. He was the CEO during the period from 31 March 2015 to 6
October 2016. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration

from Jing Qiao University in China.

Mr. Meng joined the Crown Group in May 2012. Before joining the
Crown Group, he was a sales manager at a real estate investment company
in Beijing. Mr. Meng assisted in land and property development, shopping
mall leasing and management and managed the sale and lease of several real

estate projects.

Mr. LI Yong Jun (“Mr. Li”), Vice Chairman of the Board and Member of
the Executive Committee

Aged 49, Mr. Li was appointed as an Executive Director on 3 May 2018,
and is also a member of the Executive Committee. He holds a Master of
Business Administration in management from Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business, and holds the qualification of senior engineer in the
PRC. Mr. Li has over 20 years’ experience in enterprise strategic decision
making and corporate management. He is the president of Yong Xin Hua
Holdings Group Co., Led. (7K % #5 B 4 B A BR A 7 ) (together with
its subsidiaries, the “YXHY Group”). The YXHY Group was founded by
Mr. Li in 2003 with its headquarters located in Beijing. The YXHY Group’s

major businesses cover industries real estate development, cultural tourism
investment, and internet big data services. Its business scope covers cultural
tourism real estate development, financial and real estate investment,
construction and operation of cultural experience parks, investment in
cultural and creative industries, internet big data services and art and finance
industry, etc. Under his leadership, the YXHY Group expanded into a

national diversified group.
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Directors’ Biographies (Continued)

Mr. Li is also the Asia chairman of the Global Hope Coalition (of which
the Director-General of UNESCO is the Honorary President), the vice
chairman of the China Industry University Research Collaboration
Association, and the vice chairman of the China Intangible Cultural

Heritage Protection Association.

Mr. LIU Hong Shen (“Mr. Liu”), Vice Chairman of the Board and
Member of the Executive Committee

Aged 58, Mr. Liu was appointed as a NED on 27 May 2014 and also
appointed as the vice Chairman of the Board on 2 July 2014. He was re-
designated as an Executive Director on 1 November 2015 and is a member
of the Executive Committee. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in Chinese

Literature from Yunnan University in China.

As an entrepreneur, Mr. Liu has many years of experience in commerce,
especially in real estate development in both residential and commercial
properties. He and his business partners have invested in and developed both

residential and commercial properties.

Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon (“Mr. Yeung”), CEO, Member of the Executive
Committee and Company Secretary

Aged 46, Mr. Yeung was appointed as an Executive Director and the chief
financial officer on 18 August 2015, and is also a member of the Executive
Committee. He was re-designed as CEO on 7 October 2016 and appointed
as company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) on 18
March 2017. He graduated from the University of Georgia, the United
States of America with a bachelor’s degree in Accounting and a bachelor’s

degree in Finance and Banking.

Mr. Yeung joined the Group in May 2015 as the group vice president to
business development, corporate finance, financial management and control.
He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Yeung has over 20 years of experience in corporate finance
and financial management and control and has considerable experience in
initial public offering, reverse takeover, financial management, corporate
finance and auditing. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Yeung held senior
financial management positions in several companies whose shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and a PRC private enterprise.
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ﬂ.

Directors’ Biographies (Continued)

EHREN (H

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LONG Tao (“Mr. Long”), Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Member of the RQNC

Aged 65, Mr. Long was appointed as an independent Non-executive
Director of the Company (an “INED”) on 27 May 2014 and is the
chairman of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
and a member of the RQNC. He graduated from Research Institute for
Fiscal Science, the Ministry of Finance, majoring in accounting. He holds a

master’s degree in Economics.

Mr. Long is currently the chairman of Beijing Investment Consultants
Inc., an independent non-executive director of each of Qingling Motors
Company Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1122), UBS SDIC Fund Management Company
Limited, Beijing Whoswho Culture and Media Company Limited, Beijing
Wangfujing Group Company, Limited* (AbIE EFF R B BB HRA A ) |
a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock

code: 600859) and Aimer Company Limited* ( Z 5B AR A ) .

He has extensive knowledge and experience in corporate finance,
accounting, audit, asset appraisal, enterprise restructuring and listing. Mr.
Long had served at the Accountancy Division of Central University of
Finance and Economics, and the New York office of KPMG Peat Marwick.
He had acted as a member of the Securities Issue and Approval Committee
of the China Securities Regulatory Commission and a member of the

Chinese Accounting Expert Panel for China-Hong Kong Securities Team.

Mr. REN Guo Hua (“Mr. Ren”), Chairman of the RQNC and Member of
the Audit Committee

Aged 60, Mr. Ren was appointed as an INED on 27 May 2014 and is
the chairman of the RQNC and a member of the Audit Committee. He
obtained a bachelor’s degree in English and American literature from East

China Normal University.

*  For identification purpose only
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Directors’ Biographies (Continued)

Mr. Ren is currently the senior advisor of StormHarbour Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited. He has many years of experience in financial investment
products. Mr. Ren served in various global financial institutions and has
many years of experience in international banking and investment market.
He was a managing director of Greater China Origination in StormHarbour
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and the general manager of Sinolink
Financial Leasing Company Limited. Before that, Mr. Ren was a managing
director and head of capital markets of China region in Standard Chartered
Bank Hong Kong and had made valuable contributions to the Debt and
Fixed Income business for the bank. In his earlier career, he also served
in Commonwealth Bank of Australia Hong Kong, Fleet National Bank
Shanghai Representative Office, True Stand Investments Limited (Hong
Kong), Bear Stearns and Bank of China.

Mr. CHEN Fang (“Mr. Chen”), Member of the Audit Committee and
Member of the RQNC

Aged 59, Mr. Chen was appointed as an INED on 27 May 2014 and is a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the RQNC. He obtained a
graduate degree in Technical Economy from Harbin Institute of Technology

in China.

Mr. Chen is currently the president of Beijing GZT Network Technology
Inc. He has many years of experience in corporate governance as well as
enterprise development and restructuring. Mr. Chen has also established
a valuable network in the business communities. He was the Dean of
the Institute of IT and Social Development Research of the Chongging

Technology and Business University.
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Corporate Governance Report
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

The Board presents this corporate governance report for inclusion in the
Company’s annual report for the Year and up to the date of this annual

report.

While focusing on its business development with full force, the Company
places great effort in upholding its corporate governance standards as we
believe good corporate governance is an important component in striving for

the highest returns to the Sharcholders.

The Company’s principles of corporate governance emphasize on a quality
Board, sound internal controls, independence, transparency of information
and accountability to all stakeholders. Both the Board and the Management
are committed to continuously improving corporate governance practices

and an ethical corporate culture as the intrinsic value of the Company.

The Company is maintaining a high standard of corporate governance with
a view to enhancing the management of the Company as well as preserving
the interest of its Shareholders as a whole. The Company has complied with
the applicable code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) and Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”).

THE BOARD

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises a total of seven
Directors, being four Executive Directors and three INEDs. The list of
Directors is set out in the section headed “Report of the Directors” of this
annual report. The Company has also maintained on its website and on the
Stock Exchange’s website an updated list of the Directors identifying their

role and function and whether they are INEDs.

The Board is committed to maintaining a balanced composition in terms
of its diversity of experience, expertise and independence. The Directors’
biographical information is set out in the section headed “Directors’

Biographies” on pages 18 to 21 of this annual report.

Each Director gives sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group.
All Directors are required to disclose to the Company at the time of their
appointment and annually the number and the nature of offices held in
public companies or organizations and other significant commitments with

an indication of the time involved.

.._‘_..%‘
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Save for those as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Biographies”
of this annual report, the Board members do not have any other financial,

business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each other.

Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, the Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The purpose of the code provision is to get
the Directors involved in the Board with an awareness of contribution
thereto. Directors are continually updated on the latest development of the
Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
and upkeep of good corporate governance practice. During the Year, all
Directors, namely Mr. MENG Jin Long, Mr. LIU Hong Shen, Mr. YEUNG
Man, Simon, Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. REN Guo Hua and Mr. CHEN Fang,
have participated in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by ways of reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or
to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities. All Directors have been required

to provide the Company their records of training received for the Year.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted the board diversity policy on 4 September 2013
which sets out the approaches to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance. Further, the Company sees
increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and sustainable development. In
designing the Board’s composition, board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. All the Directors’ appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against the objective criteria, having due

regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises seven members
coming from various professional backgrounds including property
development, accounting and corporate governance, etc. The Board is of
the view that the current Board has provided a good balance of skills and
experience to the Company and will continue to review its composition

from time to time.

The board diversity policy is posted on the website of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Directors’ Nomination and Appointment

Since April 2006, the Company has adopted the “Procedures on Directors’
Nomination, Appointment and Re-appointment” which sets out the
procedures, processes and criteria to select and recommend candidates for

directorship.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”), the Board is empowered to appoint a Director to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Shareholders (being two or
more Shareholders together holding not less than ten per cent. of the entire
issued shares of the Company) are empowered to nominate candidates for
directorship and subject to Shareholders” approval at the general meeting of
the Company. The RQNC can also nominate candidates for directorship for
appointment by the Board. Any Director appointed by the Board during the
year shall hold office until the next annual general meeting of the Company

(the “AGM”) and be eligible for re-election.

The determination of the emoluments of Directors is based on the duties
and responsibilities of the individual Director by reference to the prevailing

market conditions.

The Company has purchased directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for

all Directors.

Remuneration of Directors

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are set out in Note 13

to the consolidated financial statements.

Board Practices

The Board holds meetings regularly at least four times a year. Additional
meetings will be arranged, if and when required. All Directors are given
opportunities to include matters in the meeting agenda. Generally, notice of
at least 14 days is given for a regular Board meeting. Reasonable notice will
be given for all other Board meetings. Minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and available for inspection by the Directors. Directors have
separate and independent access to the Company’s senior management,
and full and unrestricted access to relevant information in a timely manner
with appropriate information in such form and of such quality as will
enable them to make an informed decision and discharge their duties
and responsibilities. The Board ensures that Directors are provided with
sufficient resources in the furtherance of their duties as Board/committee
members, including access to independent professional advice, if necessary,

at the Company’s expense.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

During the Year, seven physical Board meetings were held and the

attendance record is set out below:

SR IRET ()

EHERAE LAY RTERES T W
Ji§ AL SR

Eligible to No. of Attendance
Directors Attend Attendance Rate (%)
o B R IR R i 2 (%)
Mr. MENG Jin Long o e e A 7 7 100
Mr. LIU Hong Shen BIAL IR e He 7 6 86
Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon A8 A 7 7 100
Mr. LONG Tao HE W ek 7 7 100
Mr. REN Guo Hua A 1 3 48 A 7 7 100
Mr. CHEN Fang Bl St A 7 7 100

During the Year, the Directors’ attendance record at the AGM held on 7
September 2017 (the “2017 AGM”) is set out below:

ARG - EHLFER -F-LFAL
HERTZBHRAERT (22— L RE

MAERE]) 2 eI WMT -

Eligible to No. of Attendance
Directors Attend Attendance Rate (%)
EH % R H i U i 3R (%)
Mr. MENG Jin Long e e A 1 1 100
Mr. LIU Hong Shen BIAL RS 4 1 1 100
Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon W e 1 1 100
Mr. LONG Tao HE W e 1 1 100
Mr. REN Guo Hua 1% 1 5 5 1 1 100
Mr. CHEN Fang BB S 2R 1 1 100
Independence 14 51 P

The Company believes that independence brings unbiased judgment and
conscience in decision making. The Board currently comprises three INEDs.
One of the INEDs possesses accounting expertise as required under Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Board received from each INED a written
confirmation of his independence and was satisfied with his independence as

required by the Listing Rules.

According to article 133 of the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors who served longest on the Board since they were last elected, shall
retire but shall be eligible for re-election at the AGM. Pursuant to code
provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, every Director shall retire by rotation at
least once every three years. The Board will ensure that each Director shall
retire by rotation in the above manner in order to comply with the code

provisions of the CG Code.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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According to article 110 of the Articles of Association, a Director appointed
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board is subject to re-election

by Shareholders at the first AGM after his/her appointment.

Any re-election of an INED who has served the Board for more than
nine years, should be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by

Shareholders.

Relationship

All the Directors do not have any financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationship with one another.

Chairman and CEO

Mr. MENG Jin Long is the Chairman and Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon
serves as the CEO. Mr. MENG Jin Long provides leadership for the
Board and ensures that the Board worked effectively and all the key and
appropriate issues are discussed in a timely manner. Mr. YEUNG Man,
Simon is responsible for the Group’s business development and day-to-day

management generally.

The Chairman also, by attendance to the meetings of the RQNC, met with

the INEDs without the Executive Directors present in the Year.

The responsibilities of the Chairman and the CEO have been clearly defined
in the Company’s “Guideline on Division of Roles of Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer”.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Each of the INEDs has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of three years. The term of office is subject to retirement by

rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association and

the CG Code.

As equal Board members, the INEDs give the Board and the Board
committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise and
various backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and
active participation. They make positive contributions to the development of
the Company’s strategy and policies through independent, constructive and

informed comments.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Their attendance to Board, Board committee and general meetings are

disclosed in other parts of this Corporate Governance Report.

The INEDs are identified in all corporate communications that disclose the

names of Directors.

Matters Reserved for the Board

The Company’s “Guideline on Division of the Roles of the Board and
the Management” has set out clearly the roles of the Board and the

Management.

Matters reserved for the Board include long term objectives and commercial
strategies, corporate and capital structures, financial reporting and controls,
internal controls, material contracts, communications, Board memberships,
remuneration, delegation of authority, corporate governance matters and

policy setting.

The Management is mainly responsible for the execution of the business
plans, strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to it from

time to time.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including the Executive
Committee, the Audit Committee and the RQNC and delegated authority
to them for overseeing certain aspects of the Company’s affairs. There are
clear written terms of reference for the Board committees. Reports of the

Board committee meetings are presented to the Board regularly.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all the Executive Directors. As at
the date of this annual report, the Executive Committee is chaired by Mr.
MENG Jin Long and the members are Mr. LI Yong Jun, Mr. LIU Hong
Shen and Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon.

The Executive Committee is delegated to be responsible for the day-to-
day management, administration and operation of the Company and its
principal duties are clearly set out in its terms of reference. The delegated

functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.

SR IRET ()

BENRERGER EFLTHETTRLKR
KT Z 0 B AR A SR8 ¥ i A L A 68 43 93¢
%0

B R AT E R AR R RS2 A
S 38 L A e -

RED B 2 0

AnwZ (G LA g A6 TR
5 W 5 ) 3 o B PG 2 A o

MREBUHFEFGEM F TR AR
e T 3 SR W ~ A 3 T B AR A ~ A U R
Bivk - WRER R HOKA A MG - K
B~ W~ 120 - A SRR o S BOR T o

HHEEEA TN E R TRNZ
H Rk R BUR D R R AR IRZ T
/f,';o

EHREHE

EHRFORLZMEZRET BHAGTEA
U EBEREHOLRHEM REARRAZHE
oW T AT BTN DEEARAFST
HWG 2 FH o X W F & B ol A W
Tk A ] o S T TR O
RYHEHEG-

Wi ZHST

WG ZEERE B A ATES RS
WHM - BT EEEHEEREEREE
Ji > B E s ARk T S A - BIAL IR S A e B
Fok o

PO ZE IR AAF B WE - 17
W B i L o i) K T T W S HL T
o JLHE 457 ok e B T A B BRI A2 A o

EERKEBEGRAA 27
2017/2018 F#k

P




Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

A%”‘“’(“%’c (%)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the INEDs who possess appropriate
business, legal, engineering and financial experience and skills to undertake
the review of financial statements in accordance with good practice
of financial reporting. As at the date of this annual report, the Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. LONG Tao and the members are Mr. REN
Guo Hua and Mr. CHEN Fang.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were revised on 31 March
2016 to reflect the additional responsibility of the Audit Committee
arising from the Stock Exchange’s amendments to risk management and
internal control under the CG Code applicable to listed companies with an

accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

The Audit Committee’s main duties, among others, are as follows:

(1) to recommend to the Board the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the independent auditor of the Company (the
“Independent Auditor”), and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the Independent Auditor, and deal with any

questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(2) to review and monitor the Independent Auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with

applicable standards;

(3) to discuss with the Independent Auditor on the nature and scope of the

audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

(4) to develop and implement a policy on engaging Independent Auditor

for the provision of non-audit services;

(5) to monitor the integrity of financial statements and to review the
annual report, interim report and financial statements and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained therein, before

submission to the Board;

(6) to review financial control, risk management and internal control

systems;
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

(7) to discuss the internal control system with the Management to
ensure that the Management has performed its duty to have an
effective control system, including the adequacy of the resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the

Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

(8) to ensure co-ordination between the internal auditors and the

Independent Auditors;

(9) to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and

monitor its effectiveness;

(10) to review the Independent Auditor’'s management letters, any material
queries raised by the Independent Auditor to the Management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and the

Management’s response; and

(11) to report to the Board on the matters in code provision C.3.3 of the

CG Code.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the Year and the attendance

record is set out below:
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£ R R KB HiY /S % (%)
Mr. LONG Tao HE e R 100
Mr. REN Guo Hua AT [ 38 S A 100
Mr. CHEN Fang BB S R 2 2 100

Representatives of the Independent Auditor attended both

meetings

The main works performed by the Audit Committee during the Year
included the review of the Independent Auditor’s audit plan, the review
of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 and
interim financial statements for the six months ended 30 September 2017
with recommendation to the Board for approval. It has also reviewed the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal control system, approved the internal
audit report and reviewed and recommended the appointment and re-

appointment of the Independent Auditor.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited consolidated
results for the Year, including the accounting principles and practice
adopted by the Group and recommended to the Board for consideration.
The Audit Committee has also recommended the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), Certified Public Accountants as the

Independent Auditor at the forthcoming AGM.

RQNC

The RQNC comprises all the INEDs and one Executive Director. As at the
date of this annual report, the RQNC is chaired by Mr. REN Guo Hua and
the members are Mr. MENG Jin Long, Mr. LONG Tao and Mr. CHEN
Fang.

The RQNC has adopted clear terms of reference which are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website. Its principal duties
are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management, and to draw
up procedures for formulating an incentive-based remuneration policy.
The RQNC is authorised by the Board to determine, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management, and is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on remuneration of NEDs. No Director or any of his associates

will be involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The RQNC is also responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board at least annually, assessing the performance of
the Executive Directors, assessing the independence of INEDs, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members, determining the
policy for the nomination of the Directors, and make recommendations to

the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

In determining the Company’s remuneration policy, the RQNC considers,
among other things, salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in

the Group.

The RQNC also reviews and approves compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure it is consistent with contractual terms or is otherwise

fair and not excessive.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The Company provides the RQNC with sufficient resources to perform its
duties. Where necessary, the RQNC will engage independent professional

advice at the Company’s expense.

During the Year, the RQNC held one meeting and the attendance record is

set out below:
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Eligible to No. of Attendance
Directors Attend Attendance Rate (%)
£ g il e Hi RV W # (%)
Mr. REN Guo Hua AT 1 2 S A 1 1 100
Mr. MENG Jin Long EoR 1 e 1 1 100
Mr. LONG Tao HE i S5 AR 1 1 100
Mr. CHEN Fang B ik 4 A 1 1 100

The main works performed by the RQNC during the Year included
review of the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations on the appointment and re-appointment of Directors and

the assessment of the independence of INEDs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility to maintain a good
standard of corporate governance practices and business ethics within the

Group under the terms of reference of the corporate governance function.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company, and performing the corporate governance

duties including:

(1) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance;

(2) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of the Directors and senior management;

(3) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
p g g y req

(4) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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(5) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report as required under the Listing

Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (the “Securities Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having been made specific enquiries by
the Company, the Directors have confirmed compliance with the Securities

Code in their securities transactions during the Year.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
were audited by PwC whose term of office will expire at the conclusion
of the forthcoming AGM. The Audit Committee has recommended to
the Board that PwC be nominated for re-appointment as the Independent
Auditor at the forthcoming AGM.

PwC provides an annual audit assurance on the Company’s financial
statements. It is the responsibility of the Independent Auditor to form an
independent opinion, based on its audit, on the financial statements and to
report its opinion solely to the Shareholders, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”). The Audit Committee is obliged
to ensure continuing Independent Auditor’s objectivity and safeguard

independence.

For the Year, audit services fee amounted to approximately HK$1.45

million. No non-audit services were provided by the auditor.

DIRECTORS’ AND INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period to ensure that such financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
results and cash flows for that period. The Company’s financial statements
are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;

and that judgment and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.

PwC, the Independent Auditor, has presented its responsibilities in the
Independent Auditor’s Report in respect of the Company’s consolidated
financial statement for the Year as set out on pages 59 to 66 of this annual

report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for internal controls and reviewing
its effectiveness. Policies and procedures are in place to ensure that assets
are adequately protected against unauthorised use or disposal and that the
interests of Shareholders are safeguarded. The systems in place are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance

against material misstatement or loss.

The Board maintains an organizational structure with clearly defined levels
of responsibility and authority and appropriate reporting procedures. The
Board meets regularly and has a schedule of matters that are brought to it for
decision in order that effective control over strategic, financial, operational

and compliance issues can be maintained.

To enable the Company to discharge its annual review responsibilities
pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the Company has
reviewed the need for an internal audit function since April 2006 and
considered it appropriate to continue with the practice of outsourcing
the internal audit functions. Accordingly, the Company has engaged an
external professional internal control consultant firm (the “Internal Control
Consultant”) to provide internal audit services to the Group on an annual

basis.

The Internal Control Consultant has conducted evaluation and tests in

connection with the following management’s assertions for the Year:
(1) the system of internal control of the Group is effective;
(2) the risk management process of the Group is effective; and

(3) effective internal controls are maintained to safeguard the Group’s

assets.
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The Internal Control Consultant also formulates the annual internal
audit plan and procedures, conducts periodic independent reviews on the
operations of each division to identify any irregularities and risks, develops
action plans and makes recommendations to address the identified risks,
and report to the Audit Committee on any key findings and progress of the
internal audit process. The Audit Committee, in turn, reports to the Board

on any material issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

In strict compliance with the requirements of code provision C.2.1 of the
CG Code, the Directors keep reviewing the internal control system of the
Group and further improve the system with respect to financial control,
operational control, compliance control and risk management on top of the
comprehensive review of the internal control system conducted under the
guidance of the Board. In addition, this review also considers the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and

budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function.

The Company will continue, where necessary, to improve its internal control

system and strengthen its risk management capability.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon was appointed by the Board as the Company
Secretary with effect from 18 March 2017.

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board, and all Directors have
access to the Company Secretary, for ensuring that the Board procedures,
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. The Company Secretary
is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised of the

relevant corporate governance developments relating to the Group.

The Company Secretary complied with the professional training

requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the Year.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The general meetings shall be convened by the Directors on the requisition

of Shareholders pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance.

The Directors are required to call a general meeting if the Company has
received requests to do so from Shareholders representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at
general meetings. A request must state the general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the meeting, and may include the text of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.
Requests may consist of several documents in like form. A request may be
sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form, and must be

authenticated by the person or persons making it.

The Company arranges for the notice to Sharcholders to be sent for annual
general meetings at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to be

sent at least 10 clear business days for all other general meetings.

For putting forward proposals at any general meeting or enquiries to the
Board, Sharcholders shall do so in writing to the Company Secretary.
The letter shall state clearly the identity of the Sharcholder, the amount
of sharcholding, correspondence address and telephone number, and the
related suggestions and enquiries. The Company shall, in a reasonable and
practicable manner, pass the said matter to the Board and respond according

to the situation.

In addition, the Company may receive letters or phone enquiries from
Sharcholders from time to time, and the Company will, in a reasonable and
practicable manner, respond as quickly as possible. For matters concerning
the Company’s shares and basic information of announcements, enquiries
shall be put forward to the Company whose contact particulars are as

follows:

Address: Suite 902, 9th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3168 2588

Fax: (852) 3168 2599

Office Hours: 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

Monday to Friday (except public holidays)
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The rights of Shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at general meetings are contained in the Articles of Association.
Details of such rights to demand a poll procedure are included in all relevant
circulars to Sharcholders and will be explained during the proceedings of

meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange

and the Company following each general meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication
between the Shareholders and the Board. Mr. MENG Jin Long, an Executive
Director who is also the Chairman, attended the 2017 AGM. The chairmen
of the Audit Committee, the RQNC and the Independent Board Committee
(where applicable), or in their absence, other members of the respective

committees, are available to answer questions at the Shareholders” meetings.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationship with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogues
with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an

informative and a timely manner.

Currently, investors can assess the Company’s information through
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company

(htep://www.crownicorp.com).

The Board reviews the above Shareholders’ communication policy on a

regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company has posted its
Articles of Association on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company. During the Year, there was no change in the constitutional

documents of the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Other than financial performance, environmental protection is our key
focus. The Group is pleased to present its annual Environmental, Social
and Governance report (the “ESG Report”) of the Group for Year 2018 in
accordance with the ESG reporting guidelines issued by the Stock Exchange
(“ESG Reporting Guidelines”). Its purpose is to report the Group’s policies
and performance regarding the environment and the society during Year
2018, and to deepen the communication with the stakeholders. The ESG
Report covers the Group’s environmental and social performance. The data
in the ESG Report are obtained from the relevant departments of the Group
and its stakeholders. We welcome and value each of your feedback. If you
have any questions or suggestions regarding this ESG Report, please feel free

to contact us at:—

Address:  Suite 902, 9th Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: +852 3168 2588

E-mail:  info@crownicorp.com

OUR PHILOSOPHY IN ESG

The Group fully understands the importance of protecting the earth, our
precious planet, and prioritising environmental and social responsibilities.
As a result, in formulating our business strategies, identifying different
potential acquisitions and investments, and fulfilling our business objectives,
one of our major criteria is to integrate our considerations in ESG into our
day-to-day operations, in order to operate the Group in a sustainable and

accountable way.
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ABOUT THE GROUP

During Year 2018, the Group was principally engaged in the business
of property investment, hotel operations, financial advisory service and

property development (acquired during Year 2018) in the PRC.

Property investment segment

As at 31 March 2018, the Group held three properties in its portfolio: the
Yingkou Property, the Jinggangshan Property and the Zhongshan Property.
While the Group earned rental income from the Yingkou Property and
the Jinggangshan Property during the Year 2018, the property investments

segment is simply an office-based operation.

The Yingkou Property is a 16-storey commercial building situated in
Yingkou, the PRC. The gross floor area of the Yingkou Property is
approximately 10,740 square metres. Two separate lease agreements in
relation to the Yingkou Property are entered into with total current annual

rental of over RMB3 million.

For the Jinggangshan Property, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with a local lessee for a period of ten years (which has commenced on 8
December 2017, after the expiry of a customary rent-free period of six
(6) months), the renovation work arranged by the local lessee is almost
completed in June 2018, and the hotel complex is expected to commence

operations in about July 2018.

For the Zhongshan Property, the Group only incurred minor refurbishment
and site cleaning expenses in relation to maintenance in Year 2018. The

Zhongshan Property is vacant and to be leased.

Based on the condition described above, our senior management considered
that there was no significant environmental impact generated for our
property investment segment, and we focused our efforts on controlling
resource consumption and general waste disposal in the offices located in the

PRC and also in Hong Kong.
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ABOUT THE GROUP (Continued)

Property development segment

During the Year 2018, the Group’s property development achieved a big
milestone by acquiring the Weihai Property in September 2017. This
property is still under construction and the construction work is performed
by the subcontractor, as such, this segment is still in preparatory phase and
has not yet commenced its hotel operation, sale of serviced apartments
and remaining commercial portions and carport. The Group’s senior
management considered that the environmental impact from the property
development segment by the Group during Year 2018 was minimal and
mainly office based. Further discussions in relation to the selection of the
subcontractor are described in the “Supply Chain Management” section

below.

Financial advisory service segment

The Group commenced its financial advisory services segment during last
year through its wholly owned subsidiary named 7& % ¥ & & #AT KR 2
. As this segment is also an office-based operation, similar to the property
investments segment, our senior management focuses in environmental

protection in our office.

Given that all the segments are either office-based or not yet commenced
its daily operations, and that our staffs are all office-based, the Directors
consider the day-to-day office resources management is the most important

element of the Group’s ESG Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Office resources management

Living in the earth, our precious planet, we are accountable to build a
sustainable future for our generations and their generations. The Group
believes that everybody, including its employees, should play an important
role to protect the earth and its resources, and is committed to upholding
high environmental standards to fulfil relevant requirements under
applicable laws or ordinances during the operation of the business, including
all necessary requirements under the Environmental Protection Law of the
PRC (9132 A R 36 F [ 52 5 08 3% ) and any environmental legislation in
Hong Kong. The main influences on environment in the process of our daily

normal operation in our offices are consumption of paper, power and water.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

Electricity and Water Consumption

Electricity consumption is the major source of indirect greenhouse
gas emission at our offices. During Year 2018, the Group consumed
approximately 207,578 kWh of electricity. The Group sets out several
comprehensive guidelines and measures in relation to energy saving to its
employees with an aim to minimise the greenhouse gas emissions from

consumed electricity. A summary of the guidelines are listed as follows.

In the offices of the Group, we maintain an indoor temperature at an
optimal level of 25C. We clean the air conditioner and ventilation system
regularly to reduce unnecessary electricity usage. We install LED lighting
system in the offices, and we also encourage the use of natural light.
We encourage our employees to turn off all equipment when not in use,
especially during lunch hours and after office hours. We highly encourage
our employees to make use of modern telecommunication systems, such as
telephone or video conferencing system, to minimise travel arrangements.
We put notices and signs emphasising the importance of energy saving in the

offices.

In relation to the consumption of water, we strictly control the frequency of
water usage, and as a result, consumption of water was saved. During Year

2018, the Group mainly consumed water in a regular fire drill exercise.

Non-Hazardous Waste Management

The main wastes are the domestic waste from daily operations, and
the domestic sewage generated from staff’s daily usage. The Group
promotes different environmental friendly measures to reduce disposal
of nonhazardous waste (such as used paper) in the Group’s offices. We
encourage our employees to reduce unnecessary printing and photocopying
by using double-sided copying. We also suggest the use of electronic
information systems for material sharing or internal administrative
documents. We encourage employees to treasure and conserve resources
by keeping records of the quantity of stationery and equipment and
maintaining a formal purchase requisition system. We also encourage our
employees to use proper domestic waste treatment methods, and require
employees to dispose of domestic waste to the designated collection
containers or places in accordance with the specified location and time. In
offices where sorting waste is implemented, we encourage our employees
to categorise domestic waste. Employees are prohibited from dumping or

stacking domestic waste arbitrarily.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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SUMMARY OF KEY PERFORMANCE F S GR AL TR IS 1Y O A A B
INDICATORS FOR SUBJECT AREA A. b B 2%
ENVIRONMENT
Environmental Indicators Total
B b A5t
Emissions 2 &)
Nitrogen oxides emissions (kg) AL HE R (T5%) 2.70
Sulphur oxides emissions (kg) AL PR (F) 0.09
Particulate Matter emissions (kg) R T HEE (T5%) 0.20
Greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions W R (TR Pk
Total GHG emissions (kg of carbon dioxide T 2 R R AR PR i 2
(“CO2?”) equivalent) (F 38 ZH ALk
(M=4 ek ) & &) 182,785.40
Direct emissions (Scope 1) (kg of CO: equivalent) HEYER (FKE—)
(T S bm &) 16,528.80
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) (kg of CO:2 equivalent) M (FiE )
(TS b &) 163,986.62
Other indirect emissions (Scope 3) (kg of COz2 equivalent) ol R (B =)
(T3 S L& &) 2,269.99
GHG intensity (kg of Co2/number of employees) L3 S %
(Fr %ML gE AH) 4,061.90
Waste JB% 5 P
Non-hazardous waste generated in total BT BE A H R A
— paper used (number of paper) — MR (HAR) 49,000
— toner cartridge (piece) — W (f#) 12
Hazardous waste generated in total (tons) BT A H R AR () N/A (Note 1)
A (B
Use of Resources ¥ W%
Energy consumption in total (kWh) AEVRTHREAL & (T IF) 207,578.00
Energy consumption intensity (kWh/number of employees) it I 1H %6 %5 )&
(FER BB ANH) 4,612.84
Water consumption in total (m?) HK# & (L Xk) 1,457
Water consumption intensity (m*/number of employees) FEKE (SnJ5 KR E AH) 32.38
Total amount of packaging materials used Bt P P A 26 b L 48 () N/A (Note 2)
in finished products (tons) AN (FEE2)
Note 1: No hazardous waste is generated by the Group during the Year 2018. FfaEL © ARHRE R B — AR N B AR A
JBE W)
Note 2: The Group’s operations do not involve product packaging. No data is Fi k2 - AR A [E V) 7 NI I B B o I
disclosed. R T AT T B -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BRI~ AL w ARG ()

CARING FOR EMPLOYEES

b %2 08 B

The Group considers our employees are the most important asset for A A T 45 B % S A1) A % 8 e s R Y
our operations and development. We aim to provide a workplace with B o B AM B R R AL IR H A4 B AR T AR B
equal opportunity, harmony, continuous training and prospective career B8 A VAR - B AR - R &
opportunities for each of our employees so as to drive every one of us to B & 13 2 DR 3 2 95 SE M0 o - 68 T 4 B 4% A )
work hard and achieve our business objectives and goals. As at 31 March s TAE - 2 BRI 2 3 R R SE % H B o
2018, the Group had a total of 45 employees, including the Executive R NEZH=+—H REHIEH45
Directors. The analysis on the Group’s employees by gender, age groups, PR B - BEEATHE S o A I Rk - A

education levels and geographical regions is set out below:—

Employees by Gender
e H v 8 4

@ Male
FE

@ Female
g

Employees by Education Levels
%R BB KF 4

@ Sccondary School
s

@ College ]?egree
BB

@ Bachelor Degree
BBy

@ Master Degree or above
(R e
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Employees by Aged Groups
Helg B A 16 AL & 4y

2%

@ At or below 30

0
» 305 LT
@ 31-40
31F405%
® 4150
415505
® 5160
512605,
@ above 60
)z

Employees by Geographical Region
AR 5 P A o 5 3 53

[ ) Hong Kong
giNii

@ the PRC - Beijing
i — At s

@ the PRC - Yingkou
g — 11

@ the PRC - Zhongshan
i — ol

@ the PRC - Weihai
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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CARING FOR EMPLOYEES (Continued)

Our employees are located in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group
complies with labour laws and regulations in Hong Kong, including the
Labour Ordinance, and in the PRC, including the Labor Law of the PRC
(s # N\ R IEH 45 83 ) and the Labor Contract Law of the PRC
(3 N RIEF B 55 8) & [ 35 ) . The Group respects human rights
and discriminations on sex, race, ethnicity, age and religion are strictly
prohibited. The Group adopts a non-discriminatory policy in its dismissal,
recruitment and promotion of staffs, and focuses only on the applicants’
and staffs’ qualifications, experience and merits. To ensure fairness, our
recruitment process includes centralising the candidate selection process
by the human resources department for Hong Kong recruitment and the
general manager for the PRC recruitment, standardising the interview
assessments, and undergoing a strict vetting process for the positions
offered. We attach great importance to equal opportunity and transparent
promotions. During Year 2018, there were no cases of child labour or forced
labour occurred in the Group, and there were no incidents of discrimination

in the Group.

Our compensation, working hours and rest periods are determined
by reference to our employees’ respective responsibilities, experience,
qualifications and performance. Working hours and holiday arrangements

strictly comply with the relevant labour laws and regulations.

We place strong emphasis on employee welfare and comply with the relevant
provisions of the laws in the PRC and in Hong Kong. We also aim to retain
our talents and minimise staff turnover rates. Our remuneration package
includes allowances, benefits-in-kind, medical insurance, contributions to
pension funds, discretionary bonus, as well as participation in a share option
scheme to eligible employees. Packages of each employee are reviewed and
adjusted regularly to ensure that they are up to prevailing market standard.
The Group remunerates its employees based on industry practice and the
performance of each individual. In the PRC, the Group purchases social
insurance and housing provident funds for employees and distributes
corresponding holiday benefits during holidays such as the Chinese New

Year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BRI~ AL w ARG ()

CARING FOR EMPLOYEES (Continued)

We cultivate an atmosphere promoting excellence in the Group. Employees
with outstanding performance and capabilities are rewarded with financial
incentives such as bonuses and allowances, and/or attractive promotion

packages.

Training and Development

The Group believes that the more the development of the potentials of
the employees, the more prosperous the Company could grow. As a result,
it is one of the Company’s missions to place strong emphasis on career
development of its employees and provide them with extensive trainings.
Based on employees’ career development plans and needs, the Group
strongly encourages employees to attend any necessary external training
courses, workshops and seminars, include job-related skills training,
professional skills training and managerial training. We encourage our
employees to attend external training courses and participate in professional
lectures by providing substantial support to them, such as providing
financial support and encouraging employees to take any necessary leave for
studying. We also provide continuous professional development trainings
to the Directors to enable them to develop and update their knowledge and
skills, and monitor the latest information concerning the industry and its

development.

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group puts the safety and health of employees as our top priority.
Even though the occupational safety and health risks of our Group’s office
staffs are relatively low, we take safety education and training seriously, and
we aim to raise employees’ awareness of safety and to prevent accidents
especially fire. The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that has a significant impact on the
Group relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards during Year 2018, including the
Law of the PRC on Work Safety (e N RIEFBE L2 EAED) , the
Regulations on Work-Related Injury Insurance of the PRC ( H1 3 A R 3t A1
B TAG R B B]) and the Employee’s Compensation Ordinance in Hong
Kong.

.._‘_..%‘
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Suppliers are crucial to our businesses and operations. The Group aims
at developing on mutual trust among its suppliers. The Group adheres to
international best practices and conducts fair and unbiased tender processes
when dealing with suppliers. Our supply chain management includes a
supplier selection mechanism with a number of stringent selection criteria
subject to the core principles of honesty, integrity, fairness, justice and
transparency. Supplier selection is performed by the corresponding operation
and office managers, and the Group sets out procurement procedures
when dealing with suppliers of goods and services. In supplier selection,
the Group conducts thorough due diligence and vetting process by taking
into account of a number of selection criteria including pricing, quality
of products, company background, past experience and reputation, supply
capacity, any non-compliance of local law and regulations on existing
business, qualifications attained and financial status. Besides, the Group also
expects our major suppliers to understand the importance of environmental
protection and social responsibility and put health and safety as one of their
core principles in doing businesses. Proper internal control measures are also
in place in our procurement system to ensure each supplier engagement is

approved by the appropriate level of management.

The Group also monitors the quality of products and services provided
by its suppliers on a regular basis. Where the Group discovers that the
quality of products and services did not meet our standard, or their services
provided was environmental unfriendly and energy inefficient compared to
their peers in the market, they will be required to make corrective actions
in a timely manner. Otherwise, they may be suspended from any business

relationships with us.

Selection of Contractor for the Construction work in the
Weihai Property

During Year 2018, the Weihai Property is under construction. Such
construction was fully outsourced by the Group to an independent
contractor which is a state-owned enterprise in the PRC and was socially
responsible by participating in several reconstructions after occurrence of

natural disasters and emphasised green and low carbon construction.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Selection of Contractor for the Construction work in the
Weihai Property (Continued)

The construction of the Weihai Property has already commenced since April
2016 before it was acquired by the Company. Although the construction
work is provided by a contractor which has already been engaged, the senior
management took serious care in the background and their commitments to
the society and environment of that contractor by enquiring and reading its
ESG news and reports. During Year 2018, the project personnel regularly
monitor the progress of the construction conducted by the contractor, and
hold regular meetings with the contractor to check if there were any toxic
and harmful materials used and any contamination of materials. We also
emphasised the importance of avoidance, reduction, reuse and recycling over
disposal when managing wastes during the construction. The Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations

in relation to the contraction of the Weihai Property.

Selection of Contractor for the Refurbishment in the

Zhongshan Property

During Year 2018, there were minor refurbishment and site preparation
services for the maintenance of the Zhongshan Property performed by a
third party contractor. In selection of a third party contractor, the Group
took serious consideration in the background, experience and also the
environmental protection perspective of the contractor. The contractor
selected by us has experiences in handling refurbishment projects in large
residential communities in Shenzhen, and the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that has a
significant impact relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste in

the past three years.

During the refurbishment of the Zhongshan Property, the site supervisor
regularly monitors the progress of the refurbishment conducted by the
contractor, and check if there were any toxic and harmful materials used and
any contamination of materials. The Group also checked if the contractors
use the necessary equipment in an energy efficient way. The Group also
emphasised the importance of avoidance, reduction, reuse and recycling over

disposal when managing wastes during the refurbishment.
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

During Year 2018, the Group’s customers are from our Yingkou Property
and our Jinggangshan Property leasing operations. Although there were
less than five customers during Year 2018, our Group values mutually
beneficial long standing relationships with them, and we aim at delivering
high quality services and products to our customers. Besides, our Group is
committed to protecting the information of our tenants. Our employees
are strictly prohibited to disclose the Company’s information without
authorisation, including the identity and background and the contract terms
with the tenants. We also make timely response to any inquiries and renewal

quotations from our tenants.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

To maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business and working environment,
the Group stresses great importance to anti-corruption measures to every
stakeholders including our employees, suppliers, customers and bankers.
Any form of corruption, especially bribery and money laundering is strictly
prohibited. We regularly remind our employees not to accept gifts or
rebates from suppliers or other stakeholders under any circumstances, and
not to receive or accept any gratification from any persons, companies or
institutions whom the Group has business dealings with. To our external
stakeholders such as suppliers, customers, professional parties and bankers,
we are committed to individual and business integrity, adhering to the
business ethics of honesty, integrity, fairness, mutual benefit, and customer
first. During Year 2018, there was no non-compliance case noted in relation
to bribery and corruption related laws and regulations, including the Anti-
Unfair Competition Law of the PRC ( H1 38 A R 211 [ ) AS 15 8 F+ 33 )
and the Interim Provisions on Prohibiting Commercial Bribery ( B 7 %% 1k
T E IS AT 2 AT B ) formulated by the State Administration for
Industry and Commerce (IR TR ATBUE B ) .

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group adheres to the belief of “taking from society, and giving back to
society”. Apart from maintaining sound business development, the Group
also actively takes initiatives in community investments by actively involved
in the nurturing of talents in both the PRC and Hong Kong. Besides, the
Group encourages employees to take part in work-life balance activities
and community services, including various culture events, community

volunteering, employee outings, and supporting charitable organisations.
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Report of the Directors
O

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial

statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
provision of management services to subsidiaries. The Group is principally
engaged in the business of property investment, hotel operation, financial
advisory service and property development in the PRC. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 17

to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis by operating segments of the Group’s performance, assets and
liabilities for the Year is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on page 67 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the

Year (Year 2017: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the turnover attributable to the Group’s largest customer
was approximately 40% of the Group’s total turnover and the aggregate
turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for

approximately 100% of the Group’s total turnover.

None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in any of

the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers noted above.

DONATIONS

The Group made no charitable donation during the Year (Year 2017: Nil).
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties for investment purposes are set out in

Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the Year are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 70 of this annual

report, respectively.

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2018, calculated
under sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Companies Ordinance, amounted to

Nil (31 March 2017: Nil).

SHARES ISSUED

Details of the shares issued in the Year are set out in Note 27 to the

consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

No debentures were issued by the Group during the Year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on page 156 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of the shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) listed on the Stock Exchange, nor did the Company or any of its

subsidiaries purchase or sell any of the Shares during the Year.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
e ()

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”)

at th

e AGM held on 25 September 2015, for the purpose of providing

incentives or rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success

of the Group’s operations. A summary of the principal terms of the New

Scheme is set out below:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

50

Eligible participants of the New Scheme include the Directors,
including the INEDs, other employees of the Group, suppliers
of goods or services to the Group, customers of the Group, any
consultant, advisor, any person or entity that provides research,
development, other technological support or services to the Group, the
Shareholders, and any non-controlling shareholder of the Company’s

subsidiaries.

The New Scheme became effective on 25 September 2015 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from

that date.

The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon the exercise of the share options to be granted under the New
Scheme is 260,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the shares in
issue of the Company as at the date of approval of the New Scheme,
and representing approximately 7.58% of the shares in issue of the

Company as at the date of this annual report.

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon the exercise of the share options granted under the New Scheme
(including both exercised or outstanding share options) to each grantee
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital
of the Company for the time being (the “Individual Limit”). Any
further grant of share options in excess of the Individual Limit in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant
must be separately approved by the Shareholders in general meeting of
the Company with such grantee and his/her close associates abstaining

from voting.

The option period during which an option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the New Scheme at any time shall be a
period to be determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence from the offer date, but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option

subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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e ()

(vi) Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer to (vi) BRIEFE R HATHE - WR AT ARE

a grantee, there is no minimum period required under the New Scheme ZERFE A - 7 R R BT L - 3 4
for the holding of an option before it can be exercised. A7 {5 I 2B R A TS I RE = A R B ) L o

(vii) A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the (vii) 5240 B 352 H 6 PR WE IR 28 S Ah 1 i e R
grant of an option. AAAH -

(viii) The subscription price for the Shares under the New Scheme shall be a (viii) B &t 3 B vb Ay = B A e

price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the higher MEARBICR THE R BB EL
of (a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s HEl (%EASEH)EBRZSH#R
daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the Shares HEN B —-FHEL FEEEMNR G Z
on the offer date, which must be a business day; and (b) the average W T 8 5 J% (b) A 7 5 B2 4 H WAl 1
of the closing prices of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily 6l 26 H AE 16 22 B i H SRR PR 2 °F
quotations for the five business days immediately preceding the offer ¥y Wi A o

date.

(ix) The life of the New Scheme is until the tenth anniversary of the (ix) Hiatdl 2B 800 B E R 3E H R

adoption date of the New Scheme or the date on which the New AR RAELE - BEERF AR HR ARG
Scheme is terminated by resolution of the Sharcholders in general PV S Ty A R R EE H Ok (P
meeting, whichever is earlier. BHRH L) .

During the Year, no share options were granted, exercised or cancelled or AN R Y i R i A
lapsed under the New Scheme and no share options were outstanding as at - RES SRR Mk = F— NE=A
31 March 2018. = B R AT B o

DIRECTORS L
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report were AR JE R BEAE R AW L2 ERWTE

as follows:

Executive Directors: BT
Mr. MENG Jin Long (Chairman) AR (BF)
Mr. LI Yong Jun (Vice Chairman) ZEkE A (AR
(Appointed on 3 May 2018) (RZF—NFHHA=ZHEZRIT)
Mr. LIU Hong Shen (Vice Chairman) BlALGR S (R
Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon (Chief Executive Officer) W de e (AT AR
Independent Non-executive Directors: B IR PAT g
Mr. LONG Tao it i 2t A
Mr. REN Guo Hua AT 1 2 515 A
Mr. CHEN Fang BR Tk e 2k

EERKEBEGRAA 51
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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Pursuant to Article 110 of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board shall hold office only until the next annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election automatically at the
meeting. However, this requirement is subject to the provisions of the

Listing Rules.

Accordingly, Mr. LI Yong Jun who was appointed as Director on 3 May
2018, shall retire from the office at the forthcoming AGM and being

eligible, offer himself for re-election.

Pursuant to article 133 of the Articles of Association, at each AGM one
third of the Directors (the number nearest to and less than one-third) who
have been longest in office since they were last elected or appointed by the

Shareholders shall retire but shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. LIU Hong Shen and Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon shall
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming

AGM.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the Year or during the period from 1 April 2018 to

the date of this annual report are available on the website of the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the INED, namely Mr. LONG Tao,
Mr. REN Guo Hua and Mr. CHEN Fang, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. At the date of this

annual report, the Company considers all of them to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 18 to 21 of

this annual report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The emoluments payable to Directors (including Executive Directors
and INED) were determined with reference to their respective job
responsibilities and the prevailing market rate for their respective positions

in the Group.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company, which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance when this report prepared
by the Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the

Companies Ordinance.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the
Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors, the controlling sharcholders or substantial shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or their respective close
associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) was interested in any business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the

business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

Save as the transactions disclosed in “Related Party Transactions” as set
out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, no transactions,
. . . 5 .
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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e ()

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2018, none of the Directors or the chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) which were required: (a) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO; or (b)
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code as set out in the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND 3 BB o B LAl A i B By B
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT A BH B B 2 BE 22 B R B
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests or short positions of the corporations or R NEZH=1—H - BEARA AR

persons, other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company, in 575 5 I ] & ) SR 33605 4F B 2 B e i BT

the Shares and underlying Shares, as recorded in the register maintained by RLER  BRA A H KR AT B BN A

the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows: ] BN A By TR B IRy P B 2 RE A R
WEWME :

Shares/ Approx. % of

underlying  total number of

Name of Shareholders Nature of Interests Notes Shares issued Shares

e

gy, JBe oy A 2

JBe 3 4 A i 25 PE (A BB BERI 2 (%)

Crown International Corp. Beneficial owner 1&3 790,000,000 23.03%
Limited (“CIC”)

5L 55 R R A A PR Hi A A

(T BBl

Crown Landmark Corporation (“CLC”) Beneficial owner 1&3 1,300,000,000 37.90%

EREEMEMARAR (RaEE]) HEHEAA

Crown Landmark Fund L.P. (“CLF”) Interests in a controlled corporation 1&3 1,300,000,000 37.90%
Crown Landmark Fund L.P. ([CLF]) ZYEE ZHEAR
Crown International Fund Corporation Interests in controlled corporations 1&3 1,300,000,000 37.90%
(“CIF”)
Crown International Fund Corporation R Z A
(TcIF 1)
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Shares/ Approx. % of

underlying  total number of

Name of Shareholders Nature of Interests Notes Shares issued Shares
HeEs
3 JBe 3 Y 2
JBe 3K 45 % i 22 PR BT Wik MR B A BERI T 4 b (%)
Redstone Capital Corporation Interests in controlled corporations 1&3 2,090,000,000 60.93%
\ (“Redstone”)
\ \'{‘ Redstone Capital Corporation Z YR Z A
\\\\ \ (T Redstone |)
\\ \\\ Hung Man (“Ms. Hung”) Interests in controlled corporations 1&3 2,090,000,000 60.93%
\\\. A T ek 23
A\
\
\ Wang Hao (“Mr. Wang”) Interests in a controlled corporation 2&3 310,000,000 9.04%
\ \ EE(TERAED) DL P E
Rising Century Limited Beneficial owner 2&3 310,000,000 9.04%
(“Rising Century”)
Rising Century Limited Ha A A
(TRising Century ] )
Notes: P 5T -

56 Crown International Corporation Limited

1,300,000,000 Shares were beneficially owned by CLC, which was 100% owned
by CLF which in turn was 100% owned by CIE, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Redstone. 790,000,000 Shares were beneficially owned by CIC which in turn
was held as to 100% by Redstone. Redstone is solely owned by Ms. Hung.
Therefore, by virtue of the SFO, each of CIF and CLF was deemed or taken to
be interested in all the Shares interested or deemed to be interested by CLC,
Redstone was deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares beneficially
owned by CLC and CIC and Ms. Hung was deemed or taken to be interested in

all the Shares interested or deemed to be interested by Redstone.

310,000,000 Shares were beneficially owned by Rising Century which in turn
was held as to 100% by Mr. Wang. Therefore, by virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wang
was deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares beneficially owned by

Rising Century.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position in the Shares and

underlying Shares. S

Annual Report 2017/2018
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the principal corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the section headed

“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Company’s compliance with the relevant provisions set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix
27 of the Listing Rules for the Year are set out in the section headed

“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events which occurred after the end of Year 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year, the
key factors affecting its results and financial position, the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Company and compliance with laws and regulations
are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of

this annual report.

Information about a fair review of, and an indication of likely future
development in, the Group’s business is set out in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Report” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this

annual report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s stakeholders’ relationship is set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual

report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
e ()

PARTICULARS OF IMPORTANT EVENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Board has not identified any
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the

Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to and within the
knowledge of the Directors, there is sufficient public float of more than 25%
of the Company’s issued shares during the Year and up to the date of this

annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being

eligible, will offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

MENG Jin Long

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2018
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Independent Au@itgr’s Report
T 1A SR

o > Y a2
pwc BERAE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CROWN INTERNATIONAL FRUE R R LA R A A

CORPORATION LIMITED (REF it Mk 3 2 R4 A )
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) 2 8B W 2 8 ~E % ol i
OPINION =97

What we have audited T O &k A

The consolidated financial statements of Crown International Corporation BB RAEEAMRAE (LT 8 A
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on Al ) REMEAR (LTHEMTEEM]) )

pages 67 to 155, which comprise: R S 67 =155 H M AR B ek - B4 -
*  the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018; s RIF)N\EEZA=Z+T—HBGEME
MRV :

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then e WMEZHILFEEMGS2EKEE:
ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then s WMEZHILFEEMGAMEGEER:
ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and e WEUALFEEMEABESRER X

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a . AR E B R EEFBOR

summary of significant accounting policies. W

Our opinion M ER

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair FMB L -HEMERECRBERFB O
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March i (14 o at 2 6 ) A A i 75 o B
2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated B EREA ([HFS s aRSEm) ZEm
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial hEHRET HEEEAR_-FT—N\FE=H

Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Z+— H WA M ER O R R EZ H LA
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared WG MBRB KGR ERE - O
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. JE 7 98 O ) O A1) 2% % B A

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
LR IE G R T F BT > B PR FARE A 1

M : +852 2289 8888 » fHE : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B8 S A% b ()

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the

Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Key matters identified in our current audit are summarised as follows.
e Valuation of investment properties

e Business combination and purchase price allocation

60 Crown International Corporation Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to notes 2.7 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

The fair values of the investment properties held by the Group were
approximately HK$2,091,000,000 as at 31 March 2018, with a revaluation
gain for the year ended 31 March 2018 recorded in fair value adjustments

on investment properties of approximately HK$1,335,000.

Valuations performed by the independent external valuer appointed by
management were obtained for all the investment properties to support
management’s estimated fair values, which were derived using the direct
comparison method. The valuations were dependent on certain key
assumptions that require significant judgement, including fair market prices

of the completed investment properties of one of the investment properties.

We focused on this area due to the significance of the investment properties
balances and the significant judgement involved in making the key

assumptions in determining the valuation.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our procedures in relation to the management’s assessment of the fair value

of the investment properties included:

*  Evaluation of the independent external valuer’s competence,

independence and objectivity;

e Involved our internal valuation expert to discuss with the independent
external valuer and assessed the methodologies used and the key
assumptions used, including adopted unit rates of the completed
investment properties. We compared the current market price to the
publicly available market data of comparable properties in the same

location; and

3 Checked, on a sample basis, the published external market data for the

accuracy of the input data used by the independent external valuer.

Based on the procedures performed above, we found the key assumptions
used in the management’s assessment of the fair value of the investment

properties were supported by the available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Business combination and purchase price allocation

Refer to notes 2.2.1 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

On 14 September 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire
interest of Jumbo China Investment Group Limited (“Jumbo China”) with
the issue and allotment of 260,000,000 new shares of the Company, which
amounted to HK$335,400,000, net of issuance costs.

The accounting for the business combination of Jumbo China involved
various significant judgements around valuation of identifiable net assets at

fair value at the acquisition date.

The purchase price allocation of this transaction was supported by a
valuation performed by an independent professional valuer. The valuation
of the property, plant and equipment and property under development
acquired involved unobservable inputs such as developer’s profit margin,

marketing cost on gross development value margin and lending interest rate.

A gain on bargain purchase of HK$116,001,000 was recorded for this

acquisition as a result of the decrease on the Company’s share prices.

We focused on this area due to the significance of the acquisition, and the
significant judgements involved in the valuation of property, plant and

equipment and property under development acquired.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our procedures in relation to the purchase price allocation of the acquisition

transaction included:

e Assessed the competence, independence and objectivity of independent

professional valuer.

e  Involved our internal valuation specialist to assess the appropriateness
of key assumptions applied in the valuation by comparing the
data inputs such as adopted unit rates used in the valuation model
to market data, historical financial data of Jumbo China and our

knowledge of the business and industry.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

*  Evaluated the management’s assessment of the acquisition date by
examining relevant supporting document in demonstrating the transfer
of control, such as relevant acquisition agreement and statutory

records.

e Performed audit procedures to verify the fair value of the balance sheet

items at completion date.

e Checked to the price per share of the Company as at date of

completion of acquisition of Jumbo China.

Based on the procedures performed above, we found the key assumptions
used in the management’s assessment of the business combination and the

purchase price allocation were supported by the available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

T 37 A% 5 e o (%)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2017/2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Chan Hin Gay, Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 June 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

A 2 T W2k AR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —ZF—/\FE=H=+—HILFESE

2018 2017
ZF-NE ZFE LS
Note HK$’°000 HK$’00_(‘)
B 5% TF#L T#oT
Revenue &= 5 4,995 12,024
Other gains, net Hofth 2 5] > 358 6 4,966 272
Other income FC At W 47 7 108 728
Fair value gains on investment properties, net HEMEZ AN TFHEF -
FH 15 1,335 160,008
Staff costs & B A 8 (14,076) (13,571)
Depreciation e 14 (1,362) (1,389)
Gain on bargain purchase =l & 19 116,001 =
Other operating expenses oAt 2% 4% B 3% 9 (1,792) (30,012)
Operating profit BEBRMN 110,175 128,060
Finance income B WA 10 1,333 3,155
Finance costs il AR 10 (1,898) (7,915)
Finance costs, net Tl AN > AR T _(5_6_5_) _______ (_4_,7_6_0_) B
Profit before income tax B B0 4 8L Wiy 6t A 109,610 123,300
Income tax expense 45 B B 2 11 (895) (41,960)
Profit for the year ehwsy 108,715 81,340
Other comprehensive income/(loss): HbEwmB A, (OF#H) :
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to ~ FLA2 AT REH BT 0 B 2
profit or loss: H#EZHEH :
Currency translation differences B 168,188 (79,268)
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) AR Py oAb 2 BN
for the year Ossy)sm 168,188  (79,268)
Total comprehensive income for the year AE 4 i O B 276,903 2,072
Profit/(loss) attributable to: VAT 45 07 HEAG Be M),
(W) :
Owners of the Company PR X DN 108,716 81,179
Non-controlling interests I I e SR ME 2% (1) 161
108,715 81,340
Total comprehensive income attributable to: DL F 2% 75 WE AN 2 i oA
B
Owners of the Company ENANTE 2 DN 276,895 1,919
Non-controlling interests I e o SR 2 8 153
276,903 2,072
Basic and diluted earnings per share AT DN R
attributable to owners of the Company 5 I S A % B W 278 )
for the year (expressed in HK cent per share) ( A8 B4l 257 ) 12 3.50 cents il 2.84 cents il

Dividends

The notes on pages 73 to 155 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A B AR DL AR

Asar 31 March 2018 W —F— N4FE=H="1—H

2018 2017
S VP Y
Note HKS$’000 HK$’000
Fff T#xL T#oT
Assets g3
Non-current assets FETR B =
Property, plant and equipment LER & & ] 14 144,386 4,862
Investment properties Ed<LrES 15 2,091,000 1,881,563
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits At JRE WK S~ FEA AR O
Bt 4 21 1,209 =
Available-for-sale financial assets wl gk B B 18 - 700
Deferred income tax asset AL T 45 Bl A 25 870 -
___2:237465 1,887,125
Current assets Ui Y
Trade receivables B 7 MEWK 8 20 - 8,475
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits FE At WK I ~ FELA R R
¥4 21 2,122 3,530
Properties under development for sale T o B Bt S 2 16 568,801 -
Financial assets at fair value through BATHEBBRBRINEZ
profit or loss B 23 12,500 =
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RBLE&%EY 22 43,585 85,289
_____ 627:0087) 97,294
___ 2864475 1,984,419
Liabilities 14
Current liabilities LU RER
Other payables and accruals Al JRE A 5k T B M R B 24 101,885 30,655
Income tax payable FE A B £ 3,163 2,082
_____ 105,048 & 32,737
Net current assets Ui B0 A 521,960 64,557
Total assets less current liabilities B8 A DU ) £ A | _217_5_9_,4%2_5 ______ 1, 9_5_ 1_,§8_2_ )
Non-current liabilities FE R B £ 4%
Other payables JE At 1 A k0 24 6,623 356,240
Borrowings i £ 26 160,000 -
Deferred income tax liabilities 9 S P A B £ A5 25 430,373 379,859
____5969% 736,099 _
Net assets ¥ T 2,162,429 1,215,583
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

fr o BB IR DL AR (4)

As ar 31 March 2018 B —~F—/NE=H=+—H

2018 2017
SR NE CF- L
Note HKS$’000 HKS$’000
Bt i T#x THT
Equity i 2
Capital and reserves WA B itk
Share capital JBe A 27 1,979,067 1,309,124
Other reserves HAth ik 5 183,202 (93,694)
2,162,269 1,215,430
Non-controlling interests Ik 428 I L SRME 2 160 153
Total equity HE 2 A 2,162,429 1,215,583

The financial statements on pages 67 to 155 were approved by the Board of

Directors on 29 June 2018 and were signed on its behalf:

Mr. MENG Jin Long
a4 i S

Chairman

EY

The notes on pages 73 to 155 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Be7EISSHZMBWMER —F— )\FAH
e EE R M m L ALARE
EREEHE:

Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon
B o A&
Chief Executive Officer
1T B
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ ZF—NFE=H =+ —HILF/F

Attributable to owners of the Company

LEE N i
Retained
earnings/
Share Capital Exchang Revaluati (i lated
capital reserve reserve reserve losses)
REHH/
ek oA W 5t wfkl  CRhER)
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
T T#L T#L Ti#x T#L

Balance at 1 April 2017

Comprehensive income:
- Profit/(loss) for the year
Other comprehensive loss:
- Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners:

Issue of ordinary shares as consideration
for a business combinarion (Note 27)

Issue of new shares

Balance at 31 March 2018

Balance at 1 April 2016

Comprehensive income:
~ Profit for the year
Other comprehensive loss:
- Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive income

Balance at 31 March 2017

financial statements.

/0

The notes on pages 7.

Crown International
Annua Report 2017/2018

REZ—LEMA—H 255

2TKA
—HEREA/ (R

et 2 41 ¢
-RUBHEER

LN

S A (LA Z 5 1})
L2IFZ UK

BITEER SRR AN
A (i it27)

BITH RS

[ =Y Ee
24

REF-AEBA—HZ &

KA
kel
2w
- RERIER

EITON L

REF—-HEZA=-0
b3 ]

orporation Limited

Total

Eik ]
HKS'000
T

Non-
controlling

interests
Feen
Jhe 2
HKS$'000
T

Total
equity
WA

HKS'000
T#i

1,309,124 7915 (50,598) 12,025 (64,955) 1,213,511 - 1,213,511
o S - - 81,179 81,179 161 81,340
- - (79,260) - - (79,260) ) (79,268)
- - (79,260) - 81,179 1,919 153 2,072
1,309,124 7915 (129,858) 12,025 16,224 1,215,430 153 1,215,583

an integral part of these consolidated
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Heblena

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —ZF—/\FE=H=+—HILFESE

P

2018 2017
ZR-NE SR
Note HKS$’000 HK$’000
Bt &k T# 1 T# 0
Cash flows from operating activities REFRHZASHER
Profit before income tax W% JT 45 o A1 i ) 109,610 123,300
Adjustments for: AR
Finance costs il AR 10 1,898 7,915
Finance income BB U A 10 (1,333) (3,155)
Depreciation e 14 1,362 1,389
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BB KM
plant and equipment B - (167)
Gain on de-registration of subsidiaries FEF Jeeg 2 ) 4 89 v it 2 LR 6 - (546)
Gain on bargain purchase WAL e ] 2 WA (116,001) -
Exchange (gains)/losses MESE (BA)) i 9 (16,099) 9,159
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B W E AR Z BA 6 (302) -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale R A
financial asset A e 18 6 - 441
Fair value gains on investment properties BEWEZ N FHER 15 (1,335) (160,008)
Waiver of other payables R A0 A IR A K T 7 = (728)
Impairment of other receivables A 8 WAk R £ 6 686 -
Changes in working capital BEEEEE
Trade receivables B 5 I WO 8,925 (8,475)
Other receivables, Al R R K
prepayments and deposits FE A AR K %4 93,509 (167)
Properties under development for sale TR o0 8 B b 36 (89,602) -
Other payables and accruals At A 3K JE B
JE 14 (65,841) (3,633)
Net cash used in operations BB BT (74,523) (34,675)
Net cash used in operating activities BB Z B4 (74,523) (34,675)

EERKEBEGRAA 71
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
meBeieR (8)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— N4F=H=—4—H I FF

2018 2017
—® A —® b
Note HKS$’000 HK$’000
fi it T T
Cash flows from investing activities BEFEHZB W
Purchase of property, plant and equipment il A\ 3 ~ W B ik A (40,051) (262)
Addition of investment properties NEREY R (1,190) -
Acquisition of short-term investment W O e ] B (11,900) -
L Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries H A BR B 2> ) BT A R 952 =
\.\‘\’q. Proceed from disposal of property, B B sk 2
\ \\ plant and equipment i A Rk = 2,000
\\\\' \ Repayment of consideration payable 8 7 R A AR A (222,315) =
" \ Repayment of a loan receivable 18 7 JE WA R - 46,440
\ a3y
\‘}.' \ Cash and bank balances acquired from H &% A OF b Wi By
\ \ business combination Bl B SRAT A5 R 19 8,939 =
Interest received R &IPS 1,333 3,155
\
Net cash (used in)/generated from WEES (), iz
investing activities Bl & F o (264,232) 51,333
Cash flows from financing activities 7 Y ) 2 Bl A
Proceeds from issue of shares BAT By Z P 3k I 334,543 -
Repayment of borrowings 7R A R (27,500) -
Interest paid [BRR LIPS (11,246) -
Net cash generated from financing activities mEEHFGZHEFE 295,797 - =
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HRERBAE5HZ
cash equivalents (WA )/iﬁm@ﬁ (42,958) 16,658
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 45 %] Z Bl 4 & Bl 4 54 85,289 74,563
Exchange gain/(loss) on cash and BE&ERBE&EFEDZ
cash equivalents FE 3L W as (51 1,254 (5,932)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year AR Z B4 BB 4 S 22 43,585 85,289

The notes on pages 73 to 155 are an integral part of these consolidated B73EISSHZ Wi B ARG G MBHREZ —
2 o

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aok 1 0 5 e o B ek

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —ZF—/\FE=H=+—HILFESE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activities of Crown International Corporation Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together with the Company are
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are (i) property investment, (ii)
hotel operations, (iii) provision of financial advisory service and (iv)
property development, whilst those of its principal subsidiaries are set

out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is Suite 902, 9th Floor,
Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company has its shares traded on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Directors consider the ultimate
holding company to be Redstone Capital Corporation, incorporated in

the Samoa.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

Dollar (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue

by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2018.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements of Crown International
Corporation Limited have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of

investment properties and available-for-sale financial assets.

1

P

— 2R

ERRREMARAA ([AAH]) &
FL B Jag 2> ) (3 ) A 2 R A A [ A 4
B ) 2 SRR ()P SR A - (i) W s
B > (i) 32 B <l L) MR % (iv) 0 3
PR > M AR 2 BEEBH TR
TP B £ Bk s AR M k17

AR T K T W kM Or 2 A R A
T M S e Mk s A VR Ak G 18
% v BR B 5 oM 902% o

A2 T e T A e T 32 B A R A
A EARH T o F R B AR A F R
Redstone Capital Corporation > Ji% b i i
ik i 3

B 53 A 45 W1 38 A - AR B R R DA
T ([#x]) 25

AL M B RARE R TR _F— 4
AR Z AU H e T8 o

FEAT it BOR BE%

T SCHRB A A R B R AR T HE 2
E A BOR - B 73 A 15 W S > B AE
BOR BR P 25048 B E OB H -

2.1 Fi Akt

B AR WA R A R AR
Wb 5 e T ML uR i B
) (175 4 3 8 W He 1 1) 4
B o fR 5 S 5 AR T A R R B AR
S TEER A R Ea<E/E TN
H B S 5 S A AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 0 s e MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F— NFE=H =+—H ILFJF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
% "\.'1‘ areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the

\\\\\ consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(a)  Effect of adopting new standards and amendments to

existing standards

\} The following new standards and amendments to existing

standards are mandatory for the Group’s financial year

\,.\ beginning on or after 1 April 2017:
HKEFRS 12 (Amendments) Disclose of Interest in Other Entities
HKAS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative
HKAS 12 (Amendments) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for

Unrealised Losses

The adoption of these new standards and amendments to
existing standards did not result in a significant impact on

the results and financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEEEFHEOR MR (4)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1 Hi Rk (&)

(b) A o AR A 3 R T
HY e BT HE R 15 7T A

(b) New standards and amendments to existing standards that

have been issued but are not yet effective

The following new standards and amendments to existing

standards have been issued, but are not effective for the

Group’s financial year beginning on or after 1 April 2017

and have not been early adopted:

AT R R BL AT o R 4
RIA T A - fH i B — LA
WH—HRZ KM AL
VA B B A R I R A2 2K AR R 3R
R :

Effective for ANTHA
accounting period 2k
beginning Mk it
on or after MR
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to 1 January 2018 FEUTREE, REREARRNCE-mEE  CR0R
HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 il CRNERNIEERE A
cycle
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and 1 January 2018 BEHIREEN  DRRAERL 3k
Measurement of pkrd | frRAL BRI & “f-h
Share-Based Payment
Transactions
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial 1 January 2018 FRUTRAEN  RRHERER i
Instruments with HKFRS pird | SETRRAS |~ RER “f-0
4 Tnsurance Contracts B RN RO
[HHLA]
HKEFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018 REHIRER MEIR 230
ok “A-H
HKERS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 1 January 2018 BEMTERRN  RRaAka “R-ME
Customers sk =I=H
HKEFRS 15 (Amendments)  Clarifications to HKFRS 15 1 January 2018 FRURERN  ERERNERSEN E0F
BBk K ==
HKAS 40 (Amendments) Transfers of Investment FhaihEn REhEEs
Property 0% (BiTk)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency 1 January 2018 T (RBRERS  AIREARE 50
Transactions and #EEHG) - ==
Advance Consideration A
HKFRS 9 (Amendments) ~ Prepayment Features with 1 January 2019 FEMBRERN  REEXMERARE SR
Negative Compensation 9% (Birk) “f-h
HKERS 16 Leases 1 January 2019 FlMREE “E-hE
ek ~A-0
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax 1 January 2019 Bh(RRHARE  HRREENFREE oy
Treatments #fEae) - =~
%

HKEFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets

To be determined

FERRAERN  RRAUIBEATRARER it

(Amendments) between an Investor and its FOERFEGT  WEERERLE
Associate or Joint Venture L
(fsiTk)

P
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

/6

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments to existing standards that

have been issued but are not yer effective (Continued)

@

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

The new standard addresses the classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge
accounting and a new impairment model for financial
assets. HKFRS 9 introduces a new model for the
recognition of impairment losses — the expected credit
losses (‘ECL”) model, which constitutes a change
from the incurred loss model in HKAS 39. HKFRS 9
contains a “three stage” approach, which is based on
the change in credit quality of financial assets since
initial recognition. Assets move through the three
stages as credit quality changes and the stages dictate
how an entity measures impairment losses and applies
the effective interest rate method. The new rules mean
that on initial recognition of a non-credit impaired
financial asset carried at amortised cost a day-1 loss
equal to the 12-month ECL is recognised in profit
or loss. In the case of accounts receivables this day-1
loss will be equal to their lifetime ECL. Where there
is a significant increase in credit risk, impairment is
measured using lifetime ECL rather than 12-month

ECL.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 BEEEBORBE (5)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments to existing standards that

have been issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

@@

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting
for financial liabilities, as the new requirements only
affect the accounting for financial liabilities that
are designated at fair value through profit or loss
and the Group does not have any such liabilities.
The derecognition rules have been transferred from
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement and have not been changed.

Based on the historical experience of the Group,
the default rates of the outstanding balances with
customers and other receivables are low. The directors
of the Group are of the view that if the ECL model
under HKFRS 9 were to be applied by the Group,
the accumulated amount of impairment loss to be
recognised by the Group as at 1 January 2018 would
not be significantly different as compared to the

accumulated amount recognised under HKAS 39.

The Group will apply the new rules retrospectively
since 1 January 2018, with the practical expedients

permitted under the standard.

2.1 SR (%)

(b) A 5 AR A B Z R T
Y R BUAT QG 7T A ()

(i)

EERKEBEGRAA

P

B v I i e HI SR ok
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TR B > i AR 45 1) i 4%
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2wtk BIEHZEZ
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R 8 A 5 O A 1 AR -
P R K Al JE WAk I R
R A B T A A o A
SRR > AR
TR FI A 8 1 285 i o e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M (80)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F— NFE=H =+—H ILFJF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEEBORBE (41)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 S WAL (&)
(b) New standards and amendments to existing standards that (b) EAEMH A 4 30 2 H 7T
have been issued but are not yer effective (Continued) S Je BE 17 HE S RT AR (45 )
(i) HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (i) HWHMBEREENSES
'--,\ e [ A 4 |

N HKEFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for A B R R A
\\\ _ determining whether, how much and when revenue WRH AL T R AW
\-- \\ is recognised. It replaces existing revenue recognition W~ WER % A B ] R R
\\\ "\ guidance, including HKAS 18, Revenue, HKAS 11, W 25 Y SE BEAHEZE > BUR B
:“' Q\ Construction contracts and HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation TH M 25 fERRFE T - A HE
Q '.\ 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes. It also includes Al 185% [k
:‘\ \\ guidance on when to capitalise costs of obtaining il e
| \ \ or fulfilling a contract not otherwise addressed in WIEE SN ] RAE
\ \“c other standards, and includes expanded disclosure (BB B mE2RREE
\ requirements. T) @B IE
7RG R ) o %
75 G55 A B A I 5 R
2R SRR AT & # R AE
FO Al ¥ B o 55 A R E Y
BAEAALHIHRT] - A K

3% K ke 8 1 B E o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEFEIBORMEE (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 S WAL HE (&)

(b) New standards and amendments to existing standards that (b) CAHEMAH jif R 24 34 2 FF AT
have been issued but are not yet effective (Continued) S R B AT HE QIS RT A (45 )
(ii) HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (i) 7 v B 25 sk e 1Y) 28

(Continued) 1558 [& P A 43k
(#1)
The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity T v 2 i e B SRS
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of % RO DR B R B
promised goods or services to customers in an amount il 2t 1y 5 ) R R G
that reflects the consideration to which the entity i 2 TR s o e R P MK A
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or S - MERE R WL S
services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5 step 10 22 % S B o IR
approach to revenue recognition: B RS B AR o g
T - % 5| A\ W2k e
EACEREPS
Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with customer. Wi W% PR
SR G A
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the o W A A R
contract. TR
Step 3:  Determine the transaction price. 3k M OE X 5B MH
1% o
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the W4k MR G S
performance obligations in the contract. [ E R
HEE-
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity s R E A ERE
satisfies a performance obligation. ) EAE R (R
Bk ) R W
5o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEHEIEORMEE (4)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 S RILHE (49)
(b) T AHEMAH i R 2 34 2 HF AT

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments to existing standards that

have been issued but are not yer effective (Continued) S Je BE 17 HE S RT AR (45 )
(i) HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (i) B sk HE H) 28
(Continued) 1598 [ F A #iikss ]
A RS (%)
\\'\'\%ﬁ The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more T v W o e RSB S
\\\ structured approach for measuring and recognising %1 S B A o R R
\\\ \ revenue. The standard also introduces extensive W A 42 Bt B R B 0 U
| '\:\\ qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements, o RN 5 AR Z I
\‘}‘. \ including disaggregation of total revenue, information REME e AR B RLE - B
) \ about performance obligations, changes in contract R s Ja 5 - B B
asset and liability account balances between periods FIBAE ~ AW Z
\ and key judgements and estimates. A E KA AR E AR
FY 5 ) DA R 2 A B &
5 5 B R o
It moves away from a revenue recognition model % e Q) R R TR R
based on an “earnings processes” to an “asset liability” B | W e R A
approach based on transfer of control. HKFRS 15 A TR P HIREN [ A
provides specific guidance on capitalisation of contract BUAE | Ty 8t o 7 b B 5
cost, license arrangements and principal versus agent HAEREISHE R E T A
considerations. It also includes a cohesive set of R AE AL ~ F5FF 2 HE
disclosure requirements about the nature, amount, EE YN F i Y N |
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows RN R R I R i
arising from the entity’s contracts with customers. B % 5 RTS8 AR T E
A W 2 T B4 B
B~ A TR R W) B

30
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 BEEEBORBE (5)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments to existing standards that

have been issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

(ii)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

(Continued)

The principal operating activity of the Group is
rental income and financial advisory service, and the
performance obligations of this principal operating
activity is currently recognised in accordance with
Note 2.23. The directors of the Group has undertaken
a preliminary assessment of the effect of the adoption
of HKFRS 15. Based on the assessment, it was
determined that the implementation of HKFRS 15 as
a whole would not result in any significant impact on

the Group’s financial position and result of operations.

Meanwhile, there will be additional disclosure

requirement under HKFRS 15 upon its adoption.

The Group will apply the new rules retrospectively
since 1 January 2018, with the practical expedients

permitted under the standard.

2.1 SR (%)

(b) A 5 AR A B Z R T
Y R BUAT QG 7T A ()

(ii)

EERKEBEGRAA

P —

A 8 T ot o T SR
1555 [ % F & #) 4k |
(#1)

A AR i R
s R G WO B 4 il e 7
M5 - 28 S MR A
& AR 3% B 2. 23
i o AL EE R CH PR
il BR 40 7 8 1A 85 i o e
RUSE 1S SR A - MRLBRAE
il > T A T 5 i o
S 5R 15 % B B R & 3 A
5 0 B4 S 5 IR D % A
HEAETEREE-

LG ] 1R > R A0 7 o B
e o o QN 5B 1SR AR I 2R
At BA 1 5 o

AL H T )\F
— A — H 8 ) R
B K 5% e B B A
T AT R L i B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F— NFE=H =+—H ILFJF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEHEIEORMEE (4)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 S RILHE (49)
(b) T AHEMAH i R 2 34 2 HF AT

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments to existing standards that

have been issued but are not yer effective (Continued) S Je BE 17 HE S RT AR (45 )

(iii) HKFRS 16 “Leases” (iii) 7 8 S 25 i A SR 16

\\ AR
\\.. L‘"Q HKFRS 16 “Leases” addresses the definition of a lease, v B o HE HI 5B 16
\\\\ recognition and measurement of leases and establishes e A IR E
' \\\ principles for reporting useful information to users 7~ AR Kt R 2
\\\ \ of financial statements about the leasing activities of BN A AL R
‘\' \\\ both lessees and lessors. A key change arising from 5 1 3 i A B AR LA
Q . HKFRS 16 is that most operating leases will be LM AMEEENSE
\‘\ accounted for on statement of financial position for F A5 B A AN o 7 o B
\ l lessees. The Group is a lessee of various properties 5 i J SR 1698 B
. \ which are currently classified as operating leases. The Y 2 A ) A KR A R
Group’s current accounting policy for such leases is set BT AR R
out in Note 2.22 with the Group’s future operating N BB B IR YL o ASE
lease commitments, which are not reflected in the B2 EMEN AN
consolidated statement of financial position, set out in EETES=N P8 PoF
Note 29. BT o AEE L A
B Ry S BOR OR F E
2.22 > AR B AR AR AL
ML AN (3RS
P85 IR L A A B e ) R

Wi k29
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEEEFHEOR MR (4)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 SR (f])

(b) A 5 AR A B Z R T
Y R BUAT QG 7T A ()

(iii) ¥ B e eI S 16

(b) New standards and amendments to existing standards that

have been issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

(iii) HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

HKEFRS 16 provides new provisions for the accounting
treatment of leases and will in the future no longer
allow lessees to recognise certain leases outside of
the statement of financial position. Instead, almost
all leases must be recognised in the form of an asset
(for the right of use) and a financial liability (for the
payment obligation). Thus each lease will be mapped
in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position. Short-term leases of less than twelve months
and leases of low-value assets are exempt from the
reporting obligation. The new standard will therefore
result in an increase in assets and financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position. As for
the financial performance impact in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, the operating
lease expenses will decrease, while depreciation and
amortisation and the interest expense will increase.
The Group’s future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March

2018 are as follows:

P

PwIME] (%)

A i J 2 o R SR 6
5% LA B & R R BT
SERRSC > HARA B Fu e
AR AL B 5 AR Ut 4 A
WA THE MR- M
TP A8 O 43 AL B 6 ZH DA
o R BE I RE T &5 ) &
W 16 OBt Ak J AT
T &) B SR > 4%
JE R 3 B A 45 Y
fo B 51K DL A o AL
Hs A DU R
L e A6 0 6 3 7 AL B
T A I R S
PRI S e S B B At
T 2 K L A Y B S B
BRI - fR AR S
2 Th WAL i A A S s A B
R RO B SO IR
o T 478 B G B
BRSO B o R = — )\
FEA=Z+—H - AEHE
R S T i A8 AL
Pl AR 3R o 10K AL B ARk 48
BWE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F— NFE=H =+—H ILFJF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEG BB E (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 S WAL (&)
(b) New standards and amendments to existing standards that (b) T AHEMAH i R 2 34 2 HF AT
have been issued but are not yer effective (Continued) S Je BE 17 HE S RT AR (45 )
\ 2018 2017
A\ e N e
AN HK$’000 HK$°000
A\ \ T T
\\\\.\ -
\:\ Not later than 1 year FEN 5,994 6,161
‘\' \\\ Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years ~— — & L4 10,060 -
\ \} 16,054 6,161
\.\' Other than the increase in assets and financial liabilities B 18 bt A% A B 85 IR D R
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the B A % B AR A R
financial performance impact in the consolidated statements A A THD WL A AR Y T B S A
of comprehensive income as mentioned above, the directors Ab > A SR B o T 0 R A A o
of the Group expect that the adoption of HKFRS 16 will T s i o o ) 5B 1605% B AR 4R
not have significant impact on the financial position and B iy S B IR 0 K B S R B A
financial performance of the Group. The new standard is 7 A TR B o v B T
not expected to apply until the financial year beginning on MR L —H—HK
or after 1 January 2019. Z A% B IR 2 W A B T R
AL E R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEEEFHEOR MR (4)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries 2.2 B AW

2.2.1Consolidation 2214 7K H
Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured entity) el N N ST |
over which the Group has control. The Group controls Z A EEE (AT

an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,

variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has

the ability to affect those returns through its power over the

entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which

control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.

(@)

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred

to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity

) o B AR G5 1 41 B oA R
(GE T2 Sty AL JUE R
HA R HILH G
158 B S s BB %
B P52 B o PR DG 2 W) 2
REWR BRI Z Hl A&
NI > Sl 77 47 il Bl A 1k H A
kAR A A B

() EBELH

A 45 [ B ) L D 3 A S
B A AN < e — i
Fof Jag 2 w1 i e 2 AR AR
Ta %k i i ¥ ~ ik
W7 R BEA N Z R

interests issued by the Group. The consideration 15 B A 4 T B B AT 2 Bt
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or BEZ A FAE o B ERACE
liability resulting from a contingent consideration A 45 P AR A & i

arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities

and contingent liabilities assumed in a business

7 M AT ) B AR
23 SFAE © Y368 B DF

combination are measured initially at their fair values W K 2z v ) R DA &

at the acquisition date. R Z ] AR R ek
REE - BIBIRFMOR H
Wz FEHE

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in

the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.

7K 55 [ 4 32 T W O ke v
T 8 7 A o A D O 2

Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are e IEHERS o A w7
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to Z I e B 25 G g E Hr
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the B A RERE i > W R
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or A NRER] > 18 B R 3% EE

the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair

value, unless another measurement basis is required by

HKEFRSs.

P

8 2> TS 2 3 - B
0N SF- {8 5 TR A RE
R 2 A B W I Ty T ik
R R e
Wit o BrIET W 5
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I 47 JBE AR 2 A % 07 WL
Wi H W 2 AP e

EERKEBEGRAA 85
2017/2018 F#k




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEHEIEORMEE (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued) 2.2 &AW (%)
2.2.1Consolidation (Continued) 221455 H (#)
(a) Business combination (Continued) (a) EBHO(H)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. B i R B 2 A R

A I THE R R B M o
If the business combination is achieved in stages, i & B & OF 4 BE B 58
A the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s B > B WA T DA T
\\\\\ previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re- WA B 5 e HEE S W T 3
‘- \‘q\ measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any Z W T E #% LR WO H
\\ gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are B2 AP A o
A\ recognised in profit or loss. BB A AR 2 AR AT AL
A 8 s 18 G R R R A
\ Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the A A 1 1 R A AT 5
B Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition SRR 5 77 Wi H 30 4%
‘ date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the A F fH R o B R B
contingent consideration that is deemed to be an FERAHHRAREZ
asset or liability is recognised in accordance with FAR A VA6 5% B) 5 1 IR
HKAS 39 in profit or loss. Contingent consideration W At SR 395% R
that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its H2E RHERR © 43 R HERR
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Z SR A B A
B M AR A5 B I AR R

1t AR ©

The excess of the consideration transferred, the P WA ~ 7 B Ty
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree Z A A I i B Bt R R 2
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous 4 % DA I B W i Oy
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value Z A A0 Jie M Y W B 3
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as Z T R A i WA S T
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, W A A2
non-controlling interest recognised and previously > T e R Ry VR R o i
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the FE M WO L (BP P
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a PR~ TR I e I i
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly WHESE K B R DL A R
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive Rl aR AR i
income. Ji O S o WD VR 2 A
FAE) - I 2 BUE R A

4 TH WL AR 3 A AR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 BEEEBORBE (5)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combination (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform

with the Group’s accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interest in subsidiaries without

change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the
owners of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
amount of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling

interests are also recorded in equity.

2.2 WA (8)
22145 H (#F)

(a)

(b)

EERKEBEGRAA

P —

EB A (4)

FHMBETAAMZIRS
B ki DA R R oy 2 R B
B2 ) EAH 4 o RAEBL
e 1R ELAR B - BRI
22 5 it WA P e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

38

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change
in carrying amount recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. The fair value
is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive

income are reclassified to the profit or loss.

2.3 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less

impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on

the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required

upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend

exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in

the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of

the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the

carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the

investees net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 BEEEBORBE (5)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Segment reporting

2.5

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-

maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for

allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating

segments, has been identified as the executive directors that

makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar (“HKS$”),
which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where item are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except
when deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying

cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

2.4 /iR
o 4y % D, B 3 A R e oR
NS AE B T ER 3 — 3L
Z I REF - A FH 5 E KRN
HEAMEBHZ EEEEYRA
FE R R e Z AT E S -

2.5 ik

(a)

(b)

P

hhE R B BB

A 55 ) g 6 A B R
Fie 5 35 H 34 DAA R R A AL
W AR M 2 BB
BimmmERs ([hrefh]l)
wh 5o £ B W DL ot
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ZIRER T RAREE 2 B
B

X 53 R 47 b

B 28 Sy 38 by H B H
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ARINEEN - A ZER S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

90

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

(c)

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2017/2018
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Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
are presented in the statement of profit or loss, within
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the statement of profit or loss on a net basis

within other income or other expenses.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets, such as equities classified as available for

sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at

the date of that statement of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the

transactions); and

2 EEEEBORBE (41)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 BEEEBORBE (5)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (Continued)

(iii) all resulting currency translation differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other financial instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold
or any borrowings forming part of the net investment are
repaid, the associated exchange differences are reclassified to

profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate. Currency translation differences arising are recognised

in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to

profit or loss.

2.5 Ahlr 5 (&)

(c)

(d)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEHEIEORMEE (4)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.6 W13k ~ W o Be ik i

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

92

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less Wy 3 ~ R B v i P R b A i B
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. FHOTEE S B A S R MR o R
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to B AL 55 WO A B T H R A
the acquisition of the items. BH 3¢ o

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or HEBERAERTRA G HER
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is FH B 2 H A% 5800 F 2 1 i A AR B2

probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the

period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, furniture and equipment is calculated

Improvements are capitalised and depreciated over their expected

useful lives to the Group.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress will be depreciated when it is

completed.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than

its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

W E H 2 R A B AT SE b
R > 75 s A\ B M T i i R s T
SEEERE (g ) o B A I Al A 15
Te DR 3% BAR % 2 A 2 9] T 7E 5%
2T WA A 5 9T BR o

W3 ~ RN B il 2 I 5 DA AR

using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their R A TR AR e AR
\ residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows: 43 W 3 9 B (B (A B 5 -
‘ Furniture and fixtures 3 to 5 years AR R e R
Computer, office equipment and machinery 3 to 20 years B -MAERME R =214
o
Motor vehicles 5 years HH B2

BFAETTT NG A F A5 S AR
W TR P AR A R

a2 R AR A T v A A A 0 R
B AR R o b AR T R AR
5

T S TR T 5 B0 IR 2 47 7 85

ik — T 2 MR L R A

AL D] 4 R > I B BRI MR
T A % FE T i el 4 A (B EE2.8) o

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing 8 7 s 775 98 A L s P A 5k I B
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within MR T A 2 26 T B E - IR AR &
“other gains-net” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive T W o 3 2 [ A 28 ) v ] P e
income. [
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEEEFHEOR MR (4)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.7 BtEME

2.7 Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It
also includes properties that are being constructed or developed
for future use as investment properties. Land held under
operating leases are accounted for as investment properties when
the rest of the definition of an investment property is met. In
such cases, the operating leases concerned are accounted for as if

they were finance leases.

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each of the
end of reporting period by external valuers. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If the
information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

If the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to being
held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or
both, and that is not occupied by the Group, it is reclassified
as an investment property, measured at fair value at the date of
reclassification and the difference between the fair value and the
net book value of the investment property is recognised in the

other comprehensive income.

P

BB (AR i Rt
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

94

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

2.9

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, goodwill
or intangible assets not ready to use — are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that
are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the

impairment at each reporting date.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Development cost of properties
comprises cost of land use rights, construction costs and
borrowing costs incurred during the construction period. Upon
completion, the properties are transferred to completed properties

held for sale.

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable variable selling expenses

and the anticipated costs to completion.

Properties under development for sale are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond normal

operating cycle.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B R M Rk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Financial assets

2.10.1Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purposes
for which the financial assets were acquired. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for the amounts that are settled
or expected to be settled more than 12 months after
the end of reporting period. These are classified as
non-current assets. Loans and receivables are classified
as “Trade receivables’, ‘Other receivables, prepayments
and deposits’ and ‘Cash and cash equivalents’ in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group classifies financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss if they are acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short term, i.e. are
held for trading. They are presented as current assets
if they are expected to be sold within 12 months after
the end of the reporting period; otherwise they are
presented as non-current assets. The Group has not
elected to designate any financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEHEIEORMEE (4)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 M #s & (8H)
2101 #3F (4F)

2.10Financial assets (Continued)

2.10.1 Classification (Continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

cost using the effective interest method.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised

in equity are included in the consolidated statement of

(c) TIBk B I B

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives wf gk B O E A iR
that are either designated in this category or not E Ry Mo S A B AT
classified in any of the other categories. They are i A 8 3] 2 FE AT A T
included in non-current assets unless the investment R HEt AR B & 2 -
matures or the Group intends to dispose of the BRI E TR - SR AR
\ investment within 12 months of the end of reporting BREEMRZ T
\ \ period. il 3P B B o
\
2.10.2Recognition and measurement 2102 HERB R 7t #
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are MBEEZHEHEAERRS
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group H s > A2 5 H T3 A SR M 7
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are i H R EEEZ H o Bk
: initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for RN FEE B R 25 IR Z
K all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit P B R EN S - BERIP
or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights P2 FE I 3E 5y A e 2 B
\ to receive cash flows from the investments have expired e 4% B W R B 4 i i 2 RE R
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred i R B R - E AR T
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available- % B A RE 48 R 43 A B K
for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value. o] e IRy - A 5 ]y A% ok e 2 B
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised 5 e o ) it R T B A

RIE N FEDINR - 8ok B e WL
K JE AR B T B R B 9 3%
5 R A B R

B oy S T B R
H A R > A B N Tl R
Z R Eh o SF- {8 W B 7wt A AR

comprehensive income as “other gains, net”. A T W A AR A Ry [ b
A
Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the 5 B B R B R B
effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated 8 5 2 ) B 5 A 2 i ik
statement of comprehensive income as part of other income. 1 2% W HE RS 2 A A Z —
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are R 43 o B AR T Wk 2 HE A T
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive SLIRF - TR H B B TR 2 i
income as part of other income when the Group’s right to BB A A A WL A 2R

receive payments is established.

i Ay A A Z — T4 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B R M Rk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statements of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the

counterparty.

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial

assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears

or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEHEIEORMEE (4)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 W05 ¢ AL (40)
(a) HHERI KT 2 B

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

(#)
For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss LB R S B WK TE S R T =
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying JiE 48 4 7 4 A 7 MR T B
\ amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows i b s O D MR R R B
)\ .'; (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) ZAHFER KB R E (R
\\'."\ \ discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest W AR B A Z R AR R ) Bl
\\\\\ ] rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and {62 2R o & A Z IR
\ \\\ the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated AR - R S BR AR
\‘}‘\ statement of comprehensive income. If a loan or held-to- 2] WA R R o A Bk
\ \\ maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount FAEZFWMAIZRERAT
A rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current SRR o HIJ 5l 2 A ] ok AL e
\ effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a W ER 2 MG B R T8 & 4
practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on R 2 BUA BB o A 2 B
the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable WA R B > ARSI T TR

market price.

Z O P fEL B T L R
B -

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment A Il AL N L 4 A S 4% 0
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively WA > WA B A % B B
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised T 1% B A 2 o 1 R AR
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the Al fE B A\ 25 Bk

reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is

recognised in the consolidated income statement.

) > R A e R A R R 2
B IED A £ WA AR T R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEEEFHEOR MR (4)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 W5 B WAL (480
(b) A K25 AT ) 5 B

2.12Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b) Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a

group of financial assets is impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss,
the impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence
that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in consolidated statement of comprehensive income —
is removed from equity and recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on equity instruments are not reversed through the

consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEHEIEORMEE (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13Cash and cash equivalents LB RERBAEFEHY

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash iR E B R BERNE - Ha KB
equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits held at call with EEEY BT HEB S LR E
banks. MAF K
2.14Financial liabilities 2.14 Y5 £ A%
(a)  Recognition and measurement (a) MERRF
\

| \\' Financial liabilities are classified into other financial Vb B 06 43 S A i i B R AR
\,\‘\ : liabilities at amortised cost. Other financial liabilities at F MR 114 JFC At Bt 75 B0 o S B B
| \.\\ amortised cost are recognised initially at fair value net B A B M ) H At Bt 5 £ 5 B
\.\' \ of transaction costs incurred and subsequently stated at BN PHE (MBREEAEZR
amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net of S AR ) W R - A% i 4k B
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised AT o B3 3KE (F1BR3E 5
in the profit or loss over the period of the other financial BRAR ) BRI o] £ A A e 25 7
liabilities using the effective interest method. I Al B s 16 B 4R 00 P R
\ JHET B R 5 4R 28 P R
‘ Other financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities A A I K T — 4 B A
if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are B P 20301 B A > A B 85 £
presented as non-current liabilities. Borrowings are classified BB R B AR B %
as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional it By 445 o A B4 SR R i
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 B - BRIEAE A B
months after the end of the reporting period. R TSI 1B B 5 SR A &

W MAREE 12f0A -

(b) Derecognition (b) Il HERR

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation FHEAMAE T B CEMER -

under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. When wE 8N B E Wy - B % S
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the AL HERT o B B
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms £ i — B RO #% 48 K
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such as 37 TR ek ) 55— W o AR
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the B > B A R R IR
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and w1 % TR 4 s A T ) R B
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is w7 1L e R D B % T R R
recognised in profit or loss. F4AE - R R R T L 94 2 R 4R

it P9 R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 BEEEBORBE (5)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the

tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity, respectively.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to

the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income

tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEHEIEORMEE (4)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 BV 30 B B 4t Py 453 B ()
(b) BH 13 Hi (4 )

2.15Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

102

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property
that is measured at fair value is determined assuming the

property will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those

temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEFEIBORMEE (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 2.15 BP0 K% %E % P £ B (%9)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued) (b) EHP1EBE (HF)
(i)  Investment allowances and similar tax incentives (i) B E HE G BB B
Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim AREEBE T A A& H
special tax deductions for investments in qualifying BE WL 6 A% R
assets or in relation to qualifying expenditure. The BB S H R BB
Group accounts for such allowances as tax credits, TR, o AR 4R [ 5 o 2 g
which means that the allowance reduces income tax 5 NIRZ B E K 4 - BP
payable and current tax expense. A deferred tax asset 88 455 % A E A P A9 B
is recognised for unclaimed tax credits that are carried F B BLIE B S o AT A
forward as deferred tax assets. Ty 3R 3T B I E M oK

Tt JE

(c) Offsetting (c) sy
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when F R AP R ) BAT RE R DA
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets BIY 3 58 T K S B B I
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income 1 > DL AR A A B
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by B P K 2 i A Bl W —
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or ot s b A 1 [ — B SR B
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle B [ R R A OB > T A
the balances on a net basis. RPN R

e 5 B0 7 L 4 A E AR 1K

2.16Provisions 2.16 ¥l

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present fivg A £ 1) PR3 A % A 2 SR R YE
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is BlA v st < B AT A A Wl REZH
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle ) & IR R E AT - B E O n) S 4
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. A UL MR A o AR H
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. N7 B R 2R 28 4 s 1 e SR A o
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood i35 A 22 JE ) 6 5 AT - ZE 48 B VR
that an outflow will be required in settlements is determined by i P B AT Z W] HE M A A B R R
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is BARJFN AR Pe g o Bk R S E AT
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any BEZEME —-HEBEEEZ
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small. A RRME A S o IR JE e R o

EERHEEER LA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.16Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-
tax interest rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.

2.17 Borrowings

104

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of

the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the statement of financial position
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or

loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at

least 12 months after the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEEEFHEOR MR (4)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.18 i 3K AR

2.18 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial

period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they

are incurred.

2.19 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.20Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services

rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.

P

W s ~ S O e e R LR
B A PRy — B T 4 T i sk R A T 56
B AT B O e B
Fir 5 WO 39 Rl T A - B
JE i b E 7 B K B IR [ 4 6B B
1ok S 9 8 Y R o

R 0 A A A
S5 T B 2 4 R A
HE 1 A e Al 0 A8 A o
1B o A 8 A 2 9
o

2.19 AR

W B W ) A W i o LR B R R %
A7 7 e o T AR R 08 BRAR (B
BiAR ) 16 HE 25 M 51 2 B 19k JH Z 411
WO

2.20 D@ B & A

@) MR AZHZEH

8 B A Z AR MO 5 55 e =
IR A 0 o A SR [ O R A5
H 8 B 32 4t Ik 25 ifi e = 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEHEIEORMEE (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20Employee benefits (Continued) 2.20 & B fi A (4%)
(b) Pension obligations (b) Btk &I
2t
The Group contributes to a mandatory provident fund AR AR o i AR
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the requirements of the BB 2 H R A
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The Rt ([mAg St ) gt
assets of the scheme are generally held in separate trustee- K o W nt il Z A — i H B
administered funds. Contributions to the MPF Scheme by TRt A SRR o ARG K
the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of @ 5 1 8 A At ) 2 Ak R
the employees’ basic salaries. REREARFHEZE—HIIL
\ 1 )ﬁ:‘l-g o
VLAY
_\_\- The Company’s subsidiaries in the People’s Republic PN/ S B N SO o S
of China (“PRC”) are members of the state-managed (M B ) Z Bt s A = 2
retirement benefits scheme operated by the government of BORT 28 ik 2 B0 K 8 BRIk R
the PRC. The retirement scheme contributions are based At # 2 B H o B ARG # 6K
on a certain percentage of the salaries of the subsidiaries’ R 45 % 45 B B 2 B0
employees. 2T E 4 A i E oo
K The contributions are charged to the consolidated statement B S5 A B = 9 R A
. of comprehensive income in the period in which they relate. CEATL & E Ik
(c) Bonus plan (c) AL
p
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses, A 58 AR R BT B AR O W] BEAT
based on a formula that takes into consideration the NREAN A 2 245 B il
profit attributable to the Company’s owners after certain AR A AL TR £ B S BH 3 o
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where A A B AR R A T
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that ST E BAE 2 DA A IR > AR
has created a constructive obligation. A5 I 7 e R AR o
(d) Termination benefits (d) U1 R F
Termination benefits are payable when employment is A 1 0 906 A R R A 4R I 7E OE
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement OB AR B Y] A% Ak 0 A R RE
date. The Group recognises termination benefits when it is i o B R A AN E SR ) A%
demonstrably committed to a termination when the entity LB R B 2 08 - Hk 4
has a detailed formal plan to terminate the employment Wl 2 ] RE I > A EE R A R
of current employees without possibility of withdrawal. 5 R AT A% Ak I e AR A% b
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of 006 o 7 i o U R AR
the reporting period are discounted to their present value. + A B R A B
EHBUE -
2.21Finance income 221 MBBA
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the A B WA TSR BB R
effective interest method. [i] Ll 451 B e e 320 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEEEFHEOR MR (4)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22Leases 222 M

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised

on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-

line basis over the period of the lease.

2.23Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for services
provided. The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for the Group’s activities, as described
below. The Group bases its estimates of return on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of customers, the type

of transactions and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of service

The Group provides financial advisory service to customers.
Financial advisory service income is recognised in the

accounting period in which the service is rendered.

P

ik FEL 55 2 Wk i BT A HE 2 48 K
3 Bt % [ i AR AN - B
FHESBAREME - Pra
MESBAREHE-

5L [ 11 7 i R

R A 2 A A W AR AL A DL
AR o R M KPR — AL
LR 8 AR 2 90 25 B A I AR
T e Z MR > DL SR A 8 A DA
AR R o

A5 [ 11 75 AR RN

JUT A HE 2 58 RV 4 T e % T ik b
AN AR B 2 LB 8 B R RS
B M EME L2 ME (f
B A A W AT 5 AR )
TP REL BT P 3 AR T A A A T I
26 W

2.23 W 2% W R

Wt % O W R M AR AR 2 2Pt
B> BRI B i HE W R O - AR
4 T WO\ G R VT S M R A 5 OR
2R 8 % 1 4 AR AT RE A AT B B
5 B TN SO AR A A AR 4 B 4%
SR WA R R R A AR o AR SR
W A SR A R B8 % R U
38 5 JE B 45 TE K Yk Z 0 AR A
st Il i o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Rental income

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight

line basis.

2.24Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent asset or liability is a possible asset or obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more

uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow of economic resources occurs so that

the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain,

an asset is recognised.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

108

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, and cash flow
and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Group has not used any derivative financial instruments to

hedge its risk exposures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

3 W M B B ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Risk management for the Company and its subsidiaries is carried

out by the Executive Committee (“Excom”). Excom identifies,

evaluates and monitors financial risk in close co-operation with

the Group’s operating units. The Group monitors the financial

risk continuously to minimise the risk, such as foreign exchange

risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and

cash management.

(a) Markert risk

@@

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and
transactions are principally denominated in HK dollars
and Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from its investments

which are located in the PRC.

As at 31 March 2018, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against HK dollars, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$6,652,000
higher/lower (2017: approximately HK$5,932,000
higher/lower) respectively. The movement in the profit
or loss relates mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of RMB denominated other

receivables and other payables.

3.1 W B E R ()

A2 T R S oy W) 2 D A B
HAGTZAEG (AT ZAE]) A
B o AT % B o BLAC AR [ B 0 BT
B AR - WO - AN M 5 B
Ja I o A 5 R A ¢ S D
VI oH 4% o el e it 2 9l 11K - 451 Y A1 e
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B < I~ ) R B e B L
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(i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M (80)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F— NFE=H =+—H ILFJF

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BB L B AT B (%)

(Continued)
3.1 Y5 b e R R ()
(a) 15 B (A
(i) Bl i Jo /v P A R

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Markert risk (Continued)

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

_ J i
| \ \ The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank deposits A A5 18 ) 2 B AR B R
\\. ' and long-term borrowings from a third party with TR KA B =T W
\\\ _ fixed rates. The Group monitors and limits its interest I S ) 3 R A 6 o ARSR
\-- \\ rate risk exposure through management of maturity ] 775 I8 A5 PR RO K
\\\ "\ profile and choice of fixed and floating interest rates. FRIE 2 B By B - B
t\Q\ S UTESEY T8
W

:‘\ \\ The Group’s borrowings and receivables are carried at A4 M 2 A 5 B WOk

\\ "\-:‘ amortised cost. TEL T i e 8 AR AR
‘ The Group currently does not use any interest rate A S 1 H I B AR
derivative contracts or other financial instruments to i F) A5 A B 4 i At
hedge against its interest rate risk exposure. 1o B TH o B R %

Z T R o

At 31 March 2018, if interest rates on RMB-

denominated borrowings had been 50 basis points

HZF-NEFE=A
=t—H - MRS

higher/lower with all other variables held constant, HZEEMNRET T
post-tax profit for the year would have been Wit S O IR 25 85 - it BT A oAt
HK$600,000 (2017: Nil) lower/higher. YRR AN > A N B

ot A% i B A% 0 A 84

600,000 T (ZF—+L
AEE) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

3 W M B B ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credir risk

(c)

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
receivables and bank deposits. The exposures to these credit

risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of receivables, the Group closely monitors the
credit performances and prompt repayments from the
counterparties. The Group has policies in place to review the
recoverability of other receivables on an ongoing basis and

assess the adequacy of provision for impairment.

In respect of bank deposits, the Group has diversified its
exposures into different financial institutions. It has policies
in place to assess the credit standing of the counterparties

and financial institutions before the Group invests its assets.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of the
Group’s available cash and other interest-bearing loans that
the Group considers appropriate. Equity and other long
term financing including strategic partnerships, or strategic
joint ventures are also considered by the Group in its capital

structuring.

The Group monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity reserve
which comprises borrowing facilities and cash and cash

equivalents on the basis of expected cash flow.

3.1 J s e R R (4)
(b) 5B EE

(c)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 0 s e MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F— NFE=H =+—H ILFJF

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 W5 b A B (&)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 W b R R (&)
(¢) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) WBEEmE B (4F)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities TRTIAE M 2 B A ER
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining B H Z 7 i 391 1) 4% A B 2000
period at the date of the consolidated statement of financial A0 HEAT Z 4 B o 2R NPT B
W\ position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts BZEF LA HAMERITBLE
\ L NN disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted AR o R B AN AR
A\
\\ \ cash flows. Balances due within 12 months approximate K AT RBI 2 456k
\:\ their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not L O i A B A A o
\\ ying p g
\ \\\\ significant.
\\ A Within Between Between More than
\ }‘ lyear 1land2years 2and5 years 5 years Total
N\ —4ER — R4 [E XS TAEW L At
\"\ HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T T T T SR
As at 31 March 2018 RF— N\
ZH=+—H
Other payables and Al 8 1 R K
accruals JE it £ 4% 103,135 1,250 3,750 2,500 110,635
Borrowings & 28,800 169,074 - - 197,874
131,935 170,324 3,750 2,500 308,509
As at 31 March 2017 B4
ZH=+—H
Other payables and accruals {8 JE A 5% &
JE it £ 4% 30,655 358,200 = = 388,855
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BB L B AT PR (%)

(Continued)
3.2 %A BB 4% B

3.2 Capital risk management

The capital structure of the Group consists of owner’s equity,
which include cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to equity holders of the Company which comprises the issued

share capital and accumulated losses.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue to provide returns for
shareholders and to support the Group’s stability and growth.
The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
ensure optimal capital structure to maintain a balance between
higher shareholders’ returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debrt is
calculated as total borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total
capital is calculated as “Equity” as shown in the consolidated
statements of financial position plus net debt. The gearing ratio as

at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 are as follows:

A ] 2 AR A A B N
A b i > L o £ 4 B % B R
W DA T A 2 ) R 25 5 AN HE A B
2 > i AS A ) BE 2% AN A R iR
BB RARRGHEH -

A A B A Z AR Ay R A
5 AT B T A 2 JBE SR AR 4 [
Be X Fp AR Z REE B o A
V2 ST v A B S A - DL
Tt B IO A d A SR > 7 B
SRIEL e (T B P B B A KK )
LR A 2 AR DL AR 2 A A
DR 2 ) AP 287 - Sl PR 68 19
D5 Bl T R A A o

A AL O R b R B
Ao % bR T 1 B B A A
WA o J B TR AR K A BB
& B SRAT AEBRFH AT - AR BB %
for 5 B 85 AR D A P B v R 2
I B A R R =)
Z=t—AR=FE-LE=ZA=Z4—

H P& E A EIERN T :
2018 2017
ZZ— N\ —E L
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Net debt AR 116,415 (85,289)
Total equity W 25 AH % 2,162,429 1,215,583

Net debt to equity ratio

005 B 22 1 BL R

5.38% N/AA % H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 W5 b A B (&)
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AP 2 A%
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair TRIGIEATEIN R Z 5 T H
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been MG T B AT Z 0T o ATl S AR
defined as follows: REWMT :
. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical o AH [l & R B AR N R B T
assets or liabilities (level 1). ZHE(CRBHE) (F—
) e
| \\' . Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that o B 58 — % B 5t & 2 o E Ab
\‘\\‘ \ are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that A B & A A AR A\
" \\"c is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level W H % (BP 1R 2 4 ) B
W\ 2). B (BPAG 2R B A% ) 8100 A
\ 1 ( %:N& ) ©
e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on . HHEERKAMZEBAEY
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level Sif: i R 7 AT B T 4 e (B
3). AT B gAY (B2
) o
‘ The following table presents the Group’s financial instruments TRBEIIR=ZH="+—HAEKE
that are measured at fair value at 31 March: BATHEFIBEZMBE T H:
Level 2 Level 3 Total
B B %
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T T T
As at 31 March 2018 R-F-N4E=H=+—H
Assets 453
Financial assets at fair value through WA THERBRIRZ
profit or loss — short-term investment MBEE - ERE = 12,500 12,500
As at 31 March 2017 R-F—-LHE=ZA=1—H
Assets 2403
Available-for-sale financial assets club w4k B B
debenture 7 i 5 700 - 700
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets RGBT SEELME THZA
is based on quoted market prices at the end of reporting period. SFAE T $2 A R 2 i 35
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and BERE o M2 5 BT ~ R B - A AT
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry SEAAE - WA A T B E R T BE
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices I B2 S WRF R AT - AT TR A R k%
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an NPT REBER AR ETZTS

arm’s length basis. A2 5y > R A B T B il 450 2 5 1B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BB L B AT PR (%)

(Continued)
3.3 AV Z A ()

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an

instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable

market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments

include:

. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments;

e Other techniques, such as inputs from recent arm’s length

transaction or discounted cash flow analysis, are used to

determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 for both years.

As at 31 March 2018, some of the Group’s financial assets are

measured at fair value.

The short-term investment measured at fair value through profit
or loss is a wealth management product, denominated in RMB,

with expected rates of return of 3.4% per annum.

The fair value is based on cash flow discounted using the expected
return based on management judgement and is within level 3 of

the fair value hierarchy.

P

WHENFEET SR MHE TR
OB T3 B P A B 8 EE © WA 5E
i {8 75 5 4 8RR R VT B i
A 2 Bt - 3 Al A A A
BA A o M E TR A EZ R
CEVN VN3 ek ER R
LB A

ik — S B 2 T T OK A\ B N
T B v b > B R B
A=

S 5 LAl AR 08 P 2 4 A A
Ti B

« BUPTHAZWHHRENRLZS
[EEISIE

o BRI (R EREIA T
CTEI N T v
B4 47 ) B S0 1 75 L
2N

BB BB =R W
A 4 BE [H] oI S8 1 43¢ o

R NFEZH=E+—H o K4
VA 5 4 B S A 4R PR B o

A E B 2 SR A R
Fy—FE DN R SHE BB 2
FE A2 0] R B 3.4% o

O AR T AR 4 0 P A B ) I <
J91 1e] S A R BB i A A A
Sl i 2 1 fi e A% B 3 = A o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 W B A P (&)
(Continued)
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 3.4 GO W5 A B % £ 48
Financial liabilities HMEAE
The following financial assets are subject to offsetting, 5 A A S HK A - RS AT
enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements. A8 H AR LR T M R B RR o
Gross amounts Net amounts
of recognised of financial
financial liability
L\ assets presented
\\\ . set off in the in the
\ \\ Gross amounts consolidated consolidated
of recognised statement of statement of
financial financial financial
liabilities position position
i3l ip

MVFILRIN RS
oiR  CWRME RURZEMN

K Y 5 £ A B WA
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
\ T Tt Tt
As at 31 March 2018 R NE=ZA=1—H
Loans receivables/(payables) WEW, (HEA) Bk (187,500) 27,500 (160,000)
It was agreed in the loan agreement that if the borrower fails to 2K boh ik v 15 52 > A £ O R RE A
repay the loan, the Group could offset the outstanding receivable P Bk > R A 45 [ AT 48 B A% R OR
amount with the unsettled loan payable amount unconditionally. 8 72 I WK 4 % B G OR A4 R RE AT B
X HUEATHRE -

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 KGR A B

AND JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the accounting policies described in Note A6 b SC B 2 i A 6 R EOOR 2 i R
2 above, the Group has made the following judgments that have the s AR [ AR 1T B B A A B S R
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated It it 4 s AR e TR B 2 K e o
financial statements. The key assumptions concerning the future, and AR Z AR B B R O 915 AR
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the financial position 3 A E e 2 F AL TR R B (AR
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the JE 5 € BT Y T — BB B N AR AR
carrying amounts of the Group’s assets and liabilities within the next B 2 e e £ A R T LA ) K )
financial year are disclosed below. X% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

The carrying values of the Group’s financial assets and financial

liabilities approximate to their fair values due to their short-term

maturities. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes

is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the

current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar

financial instruments, unless the discounting effect is insignificant.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates

(@)

(b)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
certain transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the year in which such determination is made.
It is the Group’s policy to recognise deferred tax assets for
unused tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the unused tax losses can be utilised, based on all
available evidence. Recognition primarily depends on the
Group’s expectation of future taxable profit that will be
available against which tax losses can be utilised. The Group
has measured the deferred tax relating to the temporary
differences of their investment properties using tax rates and
the tax bases that are consistent with the expected manner
of recovery of their investment properties. The details of the

assessment are disclosed in Note 25.

Investment properties

The fair value of each investment property is individually
determined at each reporting date by independent valuer
based on a market value assessment. The valuer has relied
on direct comparison method as its primary method. Details
of the valuation techniques and assumptions have been
disclosed in Note 15.

4 iﬂ()@%ﬂﬁ%fl’dﬂ]l@i

»

A A5 1 S e B B A % R v A B

FCO AR - D2 A B % D

T 591 3 B0 o B 2 AR A A P

WA R I - R A R R

2 H B4 Bk DAAC SR BB 2 T AL

YA A BLAT 5 R R BN BRI
S5 T S K 3 e

4.1 EREFHEE

()

(b)

P

o f i

A 55 [ R A % M R R I A
AT 5 B > P TR A P4 A 48 £
IRFZELA H EORH B o H SR
0 R v A A A T L O A
BBUHSBZ R 5 Rt 5o A
A T A4 L o 5 T A
SR 2 A R e R B B
At SR A U o M
L R OB R A
AR Bk > HIAT B 2%
BUR BB A ) Bl 2 47
J3E 2 P A . 2 20 A0 A I 44
AR A 4 T BB SR > AR 9 T A
AR R > HARMR AT REES
J2 40 R A v A DA G G R )
BT s 4, > It 8 A i 2 R
5l PR L M 1 e 2 0 E A U
B o GRS AL E
T H AR & A A T 8 B IR
s 48 2 M R i ) 2 AR B o AR
4 1 O£ P B 99 K el 4
BEMEZ TR BZBR
Fe ik > G Bk B S B W
Z BT R 2 A B 2 0 A B
TE o Al 7 490 R R PR 25

BEWF
FHBZEYRZ AT HR T
1 ¥ o H 39T e 8 S Al 4%
L A S A < A B
— ELAR B R A R B
F AT o A E DT R AR
B Z oF A B R M kLS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates (Continued)

(c)

Business combination — purchase price allocation

The recognition of business combinations requires the excess
of the purchase price of acquisitions over the net book value
of assets acquired to be allocated to the assets and liabilities
of the acquired entity. The Group makes judgements and
estimates in relation to the fair value allocation of the
purchase price. If any unallocated portion is positive it is
recognised as goodwill and if negative, it is recognised in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

4.2 Critical accounting judgement

(a)

Impairment of assets

Assets, including property, plant and equipment and
properties under development for sale are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset or
a cash-generating unit has been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates, such as discount rates, future profitability and

growth rates.

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment

information based on the regular internal financial information

reported to the chief operating decision-maker, namely the executive

directors, for their decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s

business component and for their review of the performance of

that component. The business components in the internal financial

information reported to the executive directors are principally engaged

in property investment, hotel operations, provision of financial

advisory service and property development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 Wk B E R (%)

INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Analysis of revenue by category (a) B N2 Bk

(b)

2018 2017

-\ —F-bF

HKS$’000 HK$’000

T#x T#T

Rental income MaEBA 4,995 3,359
Financial advisory service income 2 Tl L P R B WL = 8,665
4,995 12,024

Segment information

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the
services they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments
represents a strategic business unit which is subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business segments.
Pursuant to the completion of the acquisition of Jumbo China,
the Group has adopted property development as a new business
segment as a result of a change in the Group’s strategy. The
Group has adopted the new organisation structure as the
reporting format effective for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Summarised details of the business segments are as follows:

i)  the property investment segment engages in investment
of properties in cities of Yingkou, Jinggangshan and
Zhongshan of the PRC, the Group aim to use these

properties for rental or capital appreciation purposes;

P

(b) 23 ER

ARG 2 B BB R AR
B R 8BRS B A
PR R Z WA AR
1181 55 W S 2 B A5 > L T 7R 52 L i
L i A5 1T 5 ) R At 3 785 43 o
J# 58 B # Jumbo ChinaZ Wi 4%
FH A A 45 ) Bl e > 5 ) - AR
PR AN S 0 JR A T S 3 T o K
4 P TR A T AL AR SR AE 2 R T
A-HEE—F-LE=ZHA=Z1—
H k45 8 A2 2% o S5 o i 2 A 18R
A

D) PSR R R T
I B 1y i K il i O S 4
& - AHR GRS
SR A S A I8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

120

ii)  the hotel operations segment engages in hotel rental and

food and beverage business in Weihai City (“Weihai”);

iii) the financial advisory service segment engages in the
provision of financial advisory service to assist customers to

obtain financing;

iv) the property development segment engages in property

development and sales of properties; and

v)  the unallocated segment comprises operations other than
those specified in (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) above and includes

that of the corporate office.

The investment property in the cities of Zhongshan of the PRC
is under refurbishment and is yet to commence operation as at 31

March 2018.

The hotel operation and property development in Weihai are yet
to commence operation as at 31 March 2018 as it is currently

under construction.

Capital expenditure comprise additions to investment properties
and property, plant and equipment. Segment assets consist
primarily of investment properties, properties under development
for sale, property, plant and equipment and receivables. Segment
liabilities comprise deferred tax liabilities, operating liabilities and
borrowings. Unallocated assets and liabilities mainly represent
assets and liabilities used by the corporate office, which cannot
be allocated on a reasonable basis to any segment, which include

items such as cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 7 W 25 R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £~ F — NE=H =+—HILFJE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

The Directors assess the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of segment results, which represent, operating
profit less central administrative costs. The segment results,
depreciation, fair value gains on investment properties and capital
expenditure based on reportable segments for the years ended 31

March 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

5 gk B o EORE (41)

(b) 2y ¥ EERL (#1)

R R R A (B AL A
B AT BORAR ) A8 3 3 R
Blo-BE_R - N\FR-Z-LHF
ZH=4 Bk R T Hh oy
R oy 2 o W R A  HTE  REW
N PR BB AP S0

For the year ended RE RN\
31 March 2018 EVES S IR
Segment revenue: S A ¢
Revenue from external customers ¢ H AMB % F 2 2
Segment results g B
Finance income MBERA
Finance costs %N
Profit before income tax i 5
Income tax expense i BL B
Profit for the year A Py i Al
Other segment information Jefb 2 YR
Depreciation it
Fair value gains on investment BUMEZATH
properties, net BA - FH
Additions to HE
— Property, plant and equipment  — 4 ¥~ W R it i
- Addition -HE
— Acquisition of subsidiary — el i A
- Investment properties — Rk

SRRIEEARAA

2017/2018 F 3k

121




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F— NFE=H =+—H ILFJF

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 Wk B s BB BB (A1)
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) 2r¥BER (%)
Financial
Property Hotel advisory Property
investment operations service development Unallocated Total
EA
WL E 5 B e WmERR  RAWHEA At
\ % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
LAY Tz Tz Tz Tz Tz Tz
RN
\\ For the year ended 31 March 2017 B EZZ— L4
\\. \ ZEAEFHERE
\\\\\ Segment revenue: R -
\\ Revenue from external customers KHEINIE P 2 Wik 3,359 - 8,665 - - 12,024
W
\\ \ Segment results VEiES | 156,835 (459) 6,097 - (34,413) 128,060
‘:\ Finance income BMERA 3,155
LY Finance costs il A (7,915)
\.\' Profit before income tax e i 45 1 2 123,300
Income tax expense B 0 B 5 (41,960)
Profit for the year A A 81,340

Other segment information Fb s E R

Depreciation hi# Q1) = (44) - (1,134) (1,389)
Fair value gains on investment BREMEZ AT
properties, net BA - 160,008 = = = = 160,008
Additions to wE
— Property, plant and equipment EEN VST - = 249 = 13 262
~ Investment properties —REmE 7,782 - - - - 7,782
3 customers (2017: 3) contributed more than 10% revenue of the ZHREP(CE—LEZH4)M
Group. A 42 B RR B A 1090 4
2018 2017
ot 2 U It 3
Property Financial Property Financial
Investment advisory service Investment  advisory service
segment segment Total segment segment Total
E ] EA ]
LS8 gis ] s 2 o ik WERENE s 3 At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T Tin Ti#x Tz
Customer A %FA 1,999 - 1,999 1,999 - 1,999
Customer B %FB 1,442 - 1,442 1,360 - 1,360
Customer C %FC - - - - 8,665 8,665
Customer D %FD 1,554 - 1,554 - - -
Total Fob 4,995 - 4,995 3,359 8,665 12,024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 Wtk K aBE R (&)
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) &M (%)
Information about major customers (Continued) HHEEZEFZEHR (4)
The segment assets and liabilities based on reportable segments as HoZ-NER_R-LE=Z]
at 31 March 2018 and 2017 are as follows: Z+—H o A R S 2
M E ALK
Financial
Property Hotel advisory Property
investment operations service develop Unall d Total
AHBM AR
LB S did W 2 % WEBRR %H Ak
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T Tt
At 31 March 2018 BN
ZHE+—R
Segment assets SR E 2,096,078 139,443 339 581,756 3,272 2,820,888
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBE&%EY 10,475 - 12,797 14,975 5,338 43,585
Total assets A 2,106,553 139,443 13,136 596,731 8,610 2,864,473
Segment liabilitics SR (476,295) (39,707) (203) (180,888) (4,951) (702,044)
Total liabilities AR (476,295) (39,707) (203) (180,888) (4,951) (702,044)
At 31 March 2017 e S
= ES S
Segment assets S 1,886,443 = 8,989 - 3,698 1,899,130
Cash and cash equivalents e RBE%FHD 957 - 3,796 - 80,536 85,289
Total assets HR A 1,887,400 - 12,785 - 84,234 1,984,419
Segment liabilities Pk SN (745,687) - (2,118) - (21,031) (768,836)
Total liabilities BEAE (745,687) - (2,118) = (21,031) (768,836)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M (80)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F— NFE=H =+—H ILFJF

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 Wk KA mER (8)

INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) 2 ¥R (5)

A 5 T P A 9 B v A S o AR
HEBRE-F-NFER-F—L
EZH =4 H OOk 4R b R )
G Z WA DL RO R — )\ K
FLEZA=Z+—HILEER

(b) Segment information (Continued)

The Group’s businesses operate in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 March 2018 and

2017 and non-current assets other than financial instruments

and deferred tax asset as at 31 March 2018 and 2017 based on
M # oy 2 TR E (M TR

| \ _\ geographical area are as follows:
WA
T I S ol T E BR A ) T

\
\\\\ 2018 2017

t\Q\ —R-NE B
\ '\ HKS$’000 HK$000
N\ THE T
. \ ‘-\'
\ \‘ Revenue &=
\ PRC o 4,995 12,024
Non-current assets FEW ) &%
Hong Kong iR 1,073 2,059
PRC rh 2,234,313 1,885,066
2,235,386 1,887,125

W g F % 7 T A W 5 A T R i
HEAT 4y S o Je i Bl 3 i T AE
where the assets are located. o 4T 23 08 o

Revenue is categorised based on the jurisdiction in which the

customers are located. Non-current assets are categorised based on
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeqt§
556 0 S e R B RE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —ZF—/\FE=H=+—HILFESE

OTHER GAINS, NET 6 JULfbZA) - 8
2018 2017
SR -NE B
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Refund from consultancy fee (Note) ) AR Ak (B ) 5,355 -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial wT gt A TR A VR A R
assets (Note 18) (KtE18) = (441)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B B B o W) 2 ) 302 -
Gain on disposal of property, B3 - BB sk 2
plant and equipment B - 167
Impairment of other receivable balances At A WAL 6 5% Dk (L (686) -
Others H At 5) 546
4,966 272
Note: Fff 5t
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group engaged a consultant to NRE-Z—-LE=EA=Z1T—HILFEE
perform certain engineering consultancy services in respect of its investment A LR s — AR E R B R
properties in Zhongshan. The consultancy fee, amounted to RMB5,200,000 SEPR B AT T RR R M o BB N R
(equivalent to HK$6,188,000) was recognised as operating expenses. On 5,200,0007C (#H & 6,188,000 C) & R
31 January 2018, this consultant refunded RMB4,500,000 (equivalent to HAEMRBALEM L R T NE—A
HK$5,355,000) to the Group as a result of a change in service scope and the b H s R R S S ) LA AR e
Group’s decision to terminate the service contract with the consultant. #e 1k B B I 2 R A 4 - W% R D 1 AR 4
8 3B 4 N\ B 4,500,0007C (FHE 125,355,000
W) o
OTHER INCOME 7 HABBA
2018 2017
ZR-N\E R
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xL T
Wavier of director’s fee payable (Note i) WA A (KhE) - 728
Others Ho Aty 108 -
108 728
Note: B
i) On 31 March 2017, Mr. Zhu Jin Long was resigned as the executive i) WR_R—LEZH=T—H &
director of the Company and waived the director fee for the year ended 96 A BEAE A O B BUAT A AR R R

S EEm R R E b EEA

31 March 2017 due to his early resignation.
=t HIEgEZEREE-

EERKEBEGRAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 0 s e MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

8 STAFF COSTS 8 f@ HgA
The staff costs disclosed below are for all employees and include all TR AR B 2 R B A - B2
Directors’ emoluments (Note 13(a)). G2 4E (FEE130) °
2018 2017
—R-NE —F—LE
HKS$’000 HK$000
T#xT T#T
Directors’ fees R4 3,960 5,720
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits Wt 4 B At e R B R 8,684 7,088
Provision of unutilised annual leave S B A AR 4 A 257 -
Provision for long service payment 1= 3 R 785 <0 3% 44 162 -
Mandatory provident fund T 1) A 193 230
Social security costs (Note) A PR B AS (BE5E) 820 533
14,076 13,571
Note: B <
All employees of the subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC who are PRC AR ) A 1 B 4 ) g A R o i
citizens participate in employee social security plans enacted in the PRC, R0 5 4 2 B v R 47 2 A B AL PR
including pension, medical and other welfare benefits, which are organised HEREA S R GRT E-3 ¥ &4 00|
and administrated by the government authorities. According to the relevant 2% B 9 B PR B ~ R0 B At R R o 4% HEAH B
regulations, the Group contributes on a monthly basis based on certain el AREEGEARBREH &Z2ETHS
percentages of the salaries of the employees, subject to a certain ceiling, and are Lo 1 5% T B Ak ) B R A o Bk (MR
paid to the labor and social welfare authorities. Contributions to the plans are FF LR 0wk E AR 2 BN B A N
expensed as incurred. e
9 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 9 A& E P
2018 2017
—F-NE R L
HKS$’000 HK$000
T#xT FH L
Legal and professional fee VY S 1,917 1,942
Consultancy fee B 1 = 6,224
Auditor’s remuneration 1% S i T 4 1,450 1,297
Exchange (gains)/losses, net [ESE (M) MR - A (16,099) 9,159
Office rental N Y 5,830 6,038
Business travel expenses T 5 22 ik BH X 912 654
Property tax MR 599 747
Business entertainment Er NS 614 801
Motor vehicle expenses VOE B 547 546
Annual listing fee i A 463 328
Registration and announcement fee Btk b 493 182
Hotel management fee 5 K 45 P 1,561 =
Other tax and stamp duty FE At B T K EPAE AR 239 176
Others Ho At 3,266 1,918
1,792 30,012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

10 FINANCE COSTS - NET 10 Al AR — 5B
2018 2017
R -NE R4
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T Tl
Finance costs: il A
Accretion of consideration and other payables PRAET B2 FE A M A ik S 2
(Note 24) JE 5t 2 ) (B sk24) (1,898) (7,915)
Interest on notes payable JE AL 52 98 2 F) B (20,260) -
(22,158) (7,915)
Less: Capitalised interest W B AL B 20,260 -
(1,898) (7,915)
Finance costs T AR (1,898) (7,915)
Finance income: BB
Interest income from other receivables il JE WK JE 2 R B B 361 595
Bank interest income SRAT A B A 140 2,560
Interest income from loan receivable JRE Wi B ik =2 ) B U A
(Note 26) (FiiE26) 832 =
Finance income LR TV ON 1,333 3,155
Net finance costs T S 3 (565) (4,760)

EERHEEER LA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 0 s e MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F— NFE=H =+—H ILFJF

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 B £ 88 BH 3¢
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of HEEmMRBBERNCHBRZBIES
comprehensive income represents: 5
2018 2017
RN R4
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#L Tt
W\
WY Current tax — PRC B 390 58 0 — e 1,389 2,193
\\\_\ \ Deferred taxation 2 FE A IH (494) 39,767
\\\‘. ) 895 41,960
\ q\\\
\\ Q. The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the 24 45 [ % Fir 458 i ¥5 1 =2 B Y B 440
A theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate REFA AR EBZ IMRBETFHBRGHEZ
\ \ applicable to the results of the consolidated companies as follows: PR BLR Z ZE WM F -
2018 2017
“E N —F L
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#xT T

Profit before income tax

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to
profits in the respective jurisdictions

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Deferred tax assets not recognised

Income tax expense
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o3 T 5 56 B ¥4 A 109,610 123,300

T30 PP 45 ) A T O I R i

FlZ (8w Fi R 5 H 2 BiIE 17,343 37,953
Al 0B BH 37 2 BE A 514 7,022
S BN 2 BT 5 (21,843) (7,751)
T 58 2 3R A Bl IE B R 4,881 4,736
Pt 45 . B 32 895 41,960




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B R M Rk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 0.9% (2017: 30.8%).
The change is caused by a change in the profitability of the Group’s

subsidiaries in the respective places.

The applicable rate of Hong Kong profits tax is 16.5% (2017: 16.5%).
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax (2017: Nil) has been made
for the year as the Group has no assessable profit for the year (2017:
Nil). Provision for China corporate income tax is calculated based on
the statutory tax rate of 25% (2017: 25%) on the assessable income of

each of the Group’s PRC entities.

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per ordinary share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the

year.

11 i f3 BB 3¢ (%)

T RE S ¥ I BLR 50.9% (ZF—+L
4F 1 30.8% ) o Fh 25 Bh TG s A4 [ 45
Hh B A T =2 R g H B A BT S o

BFWBAARZEHBRE165% (ZF
— L4 16.5% ) o R AR B4R ) I f
FERRBLER A ( 2 — LA ) - SO AR
A PN S A W A AR B th B (2%
—B4E ) o A SRS B T
0 A A5 45 v R R LB ML A i
EBEAR25% (ZF— L :25%) 5t H -

12 &
(a) IR I 2 A R T D4R AR
2 7 M 25 45 A A RE A B R DL
97 1 e 2 I 4 W o

2018 2017
e A I

Profit for the year attributable to A ) HEA N HEAG AR N R )

owner of the Company, HK$’000 T#L 108,716 81,179
Weighted average number of TV AT 5 4 B 2 I RE T ¥ 8

ordinary shares in issue 3,110,465,753  2,860,000,000
Basic earnings per ordinary share, HK cents %5 JBt 35 40 [ 36 A LA > s Al 3.50 2.84

(b) The calculation of diluted earnings per ordinary share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares used, which is
the same for calculating basic earnings per ordinary share above,
as the Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
shares arising from share options for the two years ended 31

March 2018 and 31 March 2017.

(b) B M 2R 2 BT DA
A2 T BN RE AR AF 7 % A R st
B3 b SO M O B 2z Bk R 2 A
Fiv FH =2 1 I 3 728 T o R P 3% S
K9 FNERAARERE R
—NE=ZA=Z+—HREZF—LHF
ZH = H kA A R I R
Ji P AR 2 A 4 A O R

EERKEBEGRAA
2017/2018 F#k ]- 29
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M (80)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ ~F —NFE=H =+ —HILF/F

13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 13 4 2 A B A
DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) HHFEREFHITHRABZHN4
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is set TAER R HITHRANRZH M
out below: mT:
For the year ended 31 March 2018: BRE-F-NE=ZA=Z+—HL
AR

Executive directors kg
Meng Jin Long FE
Liu Hong Shen Bl
Yeung Man, Simon (a) Bl

Independent non-executive B AT
directors

Long Tao i

Ren Guo Hua iy ki

Chen Fang B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (Continued)

A W B R M Rk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2017:

13 P Z A oM 4 (%)

() WA BRI mAT A R Z &
(%)
REZZ-LHEZA=Z+—HIE
AR :

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

BB ANL DR CRaBARA RIS %) & b R ORI I A sk 2 T &

Emoluments paid

or receivable in respect
of director’s

other services in
connection with

the management

of the affairs of

the Company

Employer’s
contribution to

retirement benefit or its subsidiary

Name Fees Salaries scheme undertaking Total
RS R
ARSI £ 3
BRI ZEE FHEIEMERD
i3 ik Ha f3k LEY. i ed kS B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
T TH#x T TH#x TH#x
Executive directors BT H
Meng Jin Long HRHE 1,500 = = = 1,500
Liu Hong Shen LR 1,500 = = - 1,500
Yeung Man, Simon (a) B () 1,392 - 18 - 1,410
Zhu Jin Long (b) RAH®b) 728 = = = 728
Independent non-executive BB 3
directors
Long Tao it 200 - - - 200
Ren Guo Hua fEr 200 = = = 200
Chen Fang B 200 - = = 200
5,720 - 18 - 5,738
Notes: B 5
(a)  Mr. Yeung Man, Simon was appointed as the chief executive officer (@) MHEEER_F—-NFETHLEH

of the Company on 7 October 2016.

(b)

Appointed on 7 October 2016 and resigned on 31 March 2017.

Mr. Zhu waived his director’s fee of HK$728,000 during the year

due to his early resignation.

W AT T AR N R AT BORR A

WoZ—ANETALHERER
W oB-EEZHZE—HE
AT o 4279 - BUAG2E PR 4 B BEAT: 1T ik
B I H 54 45 728,000 45 IG

EERKEBEGRAA
2017/2018 F#k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

132

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

The Company’s executive directors represent all of the
Company’s chief executives. Accordingly, no separate disclosure
in respect of the remuneration of the chief executives is made in

the financial statements.

No emoluments were paid to any director as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office during the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any termination

benefits during the year (2017: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’

services (2017: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such

directors

As at 31 March 2018, there was no loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings arrangements in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such directors (2017:

Nil).
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13 3 2 A A B A 2 (4)

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

LS 2 FTi YN FA. ko
(%)

AT AT R TIA A T AT
ATBON B o IR » B 5 93 7 O 4
AT B R AT BN L A o

PEREZZ-NE=ZA=Z+—HIk
A JE > AN W] S SR 1) A ] B ST A
A T <6 > A1 2 28 i 200 55 i A A 5
VB A\ A 4 T I 2 A D 4 s AR
T B AR (LA ) o

g 2 %k A B A A

AR MR S ORI R

LT R R R A (=% —L4F
) -

T8 3L = RS i vl 58 =05
AT Z R
REEZE - N\FE=ZA=1+—HIk
A JRE > AR 45 ) S S R L IR
AL 7 5 =05 AR (=% — &
) o

LS & AP35 5 e
2 VG I e B 2 3 I
ZEWB A% 1
FEK B b 22 5 Z B
R=F—/UEZ A=+ —H -
DA ~ 32 2 0
B S B R A RN
FERC WM 32 5 %8k (
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 13 34 Z A A B A i (41)
DIRECTORS (Continued)
(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions, () HHRRY KIS LD
al‘l‘angements or contracts 2@:*%%
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in A 55 (90 RO 9 At A S T % 5 T oL AR
relation to the Group’s business to which the Group was a party R E R R R O
and in which a director of the Group had a material interest, 2 > HLRAE R 4R AR ] I P 475 48
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or AR ERIE S B REH
at any time during the year (2017: Nil). (ZF— L) -
(f) Five highest paid individuals ) hABMHHEAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in AREEREFM AL REFHEALE
the Group for the year comprise 3 directors and 2 employees B=##F R _4EE (ZF—tL
(2017: comprise 4 directors and 1 employee). The details of the FrAFENAERERARE) -
emoluments payable to the 2 employees (2017: 1) during the year EREANZ A (R b —
are presented below: Z)EB W25 W
2018 2017
—F-N\E —FbF
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
Tl Tl
Salaries and other short-term employee Wt 4 B At e 30 8 B A
benefits 2,237 1,500
Pension costs — defined contribution plan TR AR 4 i AR — S L i 36 18
2,273 1,518

Number of individuals

A¥

2018 2017
=F NgE —F-LF

Emoluments band T 4 i [

HK$1 — HK$500,000 1% 7€ —500,000% 7 - -
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001%5JC — 1,000,000%5 JC 1 =
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 %5 JG — 1,500,000 %5 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001%5 JC — 2,000,000 %5 JG 1 1

EERHEEER LA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F— NFE=H =+—H ILFJF

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 W3k ~ B Bk

Computer,
office
Furniture and quip Leasehold Motor  Construction
fixtures  and machinery  improvement vehicles in progress Total
R AE
BRREE  RWRBS A %E T ERTR B
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
Tix T T#x Ti#x Tix T
3\ As at 31 March 2016 REZZB-AE=ZH=EF—H
\' 3\ Cost A 145 4,879 973 4370 = 10,367
\ \ 3\ Accumulated depreciation 2t e (73) (1,002) (324) (942) = (2,341)
\} \\\ 7 3,877 649 3,428 = 8,026
\'\ \\} Year ended 31 March 2017 RE-Z LA
| \\ SAS Rk
\ \. Opening net book amount B A 72 3,877 649 3,428 = 8,026
\\ Currency translation differences ISR - (204) 2 (2) - (204)
Additions " 13 - 249 - = 262
-\._ \ Disposals e - - = (1,833) - (1,833)
‘_\. Charge for the year R (50) (331) (367) (641) - (1,389)
Closing net book amount A 5K i L 35 3,342 533 952 = 4,862
As at 31 March 2017 REZ—-LE=H=4-0
Cost A 156 4,642 1,222 2,366 S 8,386
Accumulated depreciation AR E (121) (1,300) (689) (1,414) S (3,524)
35 3,342 533 952 - 4,862
Year ended 31 March 2018 REZZ N5
SAZF—-HIERE
Opening net book amount B A 35 3,342 533 952 - 4,862
Curtency translation differences  AMEHHEH = 337 10 25 12,567 12,939
Additions " - 4 600 477 38,970 40,051
Acquisition of a subsidiary W b — o B 0
(Note 19) (WE19) - - = = 163,128 163,128
Reclassified to property under AHABEGHERRE T HE
development for sale (Note 16) (F3E16) - - = = (75,232) (75,232)
Charge for the year EREE (32) 277) (543) (510) - (1,362)
Closing net book amount AR R 3 3,406 600 944 139,433 144,386
As at 31 March 2018 BREF-NEZNZE4—H
Cost JBA 156 5,053 1,847 2,874 139,433 149,363
Accumulated depreciation R (153) (1,647) (1,247) (1,930) = (4,977)
3 3,406 600 944 139,433 144,386
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15 BEP %
2018 2017
SR -NE b
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tl Tl
At 1 April W A—H 1,881,563 1,828,920
Addition wE 7,828 7,782
Fair value gains, net Y [ 2 | R 1,335 160,008
Exchange difference iEE 58, 2 200,274 (115,147)
At 31 March W=H=+—H 2,091,000 1,881,563
The Group’s property interests held under operating lease to earn A A )RR 2 A0 L 5 DR R 4 i
rental income or for capital appreciation are measured using the fair Nt A fE 2 P 36 R 2 T R A F
value model. RG] & -
Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment R B P O A R 2
properties
2018 2017
—R-N\E R
HKS$’000 HK$’000
TG Tt
Rental income 4 WA 4,995 3,359
Direct operating expenses from properties that KEHOCHMHESBAZ
generated rental income PENEERE Y (820) (789)
Direct operating expenses from property that KEREMHSBRAZ
did not generate rental income WEWNEZERBEHT 39) (38)

EERHEEER LA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F— NFE=H =+—H ILFJF

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15 B WE (41)
Investment properties Relationship of
held by the Group in the Valuation Significant ~ unobservable
consolidated statement of Fair value technique(s) and unobservable  inputs for fair 2018 2017
financial position hierarchy key input(s) input(s) value HK$’000 HK$’000
LVN ARl
A MER AN AUBW AUBWHA  ZF-AE ZF-LE
A58 BT 5 Bt ¥ AR CERIE ST ER TN 1 BAZY  BUZHK T#x T#x
|\ Property in Yingkou (located at ~ Level 3 Direct comparison method Adopted unit  The higher the 105,125 95,033
B\ I‘:\f‘_ Zhuoyue Building, Kunlun rate of the adopted unit
\\ \} Main Street West, Bayuquan The key input is: comparable  rate, the higher
\\\ District, Yingkou City, properties and the fair value
\ \ Liaoning Province, the PRC) 1 Adopted unit rates adjust to reflect
\ the conditions

\ and locations

\ \\\ of the subject

properties
ﬁ\} BOHE (MR P REEE H=H HELES B oA 105,125 95,033
B 0T BRE MERE
A\ YNGR YN FEBAZYS: WAERR, =
W\ A th 3 2 D AT
\ 1 CRMAEMER JUER LES 1
ARV R e E
Property in Zhongshan (located ~ Level 3 Direct comparison method Adopted unit  The higher the 1,917,500 1,728,900
at Daxing Hao Yuan, No. 69 rate of the adopted unit
Zhongshan Third Road, East The key input is: comparable  rate, the higher
District, Zhongshan City, properties and the fair value
Guangdong Province, the 1 Adopted unit rates adjust to reflect
PRC) the conditions

and locations
of the subject

properties
il (R EBRE B=8 834 &5 A BHEL SR 1,917,500 1,728,900
L R L oA L g £
ZHeo R REH) FEBARYR LS & TN
EAEHWEL AP
1 CRMEMER JUES L/
Z kY B i B
Property in Jinggangshan Level 3 Direct comparison method Adopted unit  The higher the 68,375 57,630
(located at No. 1 Lan Hua rate of the adopted unit
Ping Road, Ciping Town, The key inputs are: comparable  rate, the higher
Jinggangshan City, Jian City, properties and the fair value
Jiangxi Province, the PRC) 1 Adopted unit rates adjust to reflect

the conditions
and locations
of the subject

properties
FER L TE (RR R R H=4 BB WM EZ [t ¥ 68,375 57,630

5 R B 1) T SRS [R731 HALE R
iza o) FERARYA: HAER, >
Wl ATEBE

1 BRMEAER TR D) R

TEmE

sk i i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B R M Rk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group has measured the deferred tax relating to the temporary
differences of these investment properties using the tax rates and the
tax bases that are consistent with the expected manner of recovery of

these investment properties.

Level 3 fair values of investment properties have been generally derived
using the sales comparison approach. Sales prices of comparable
properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key
attributes such as property size. The most significant input into this
valuation approach is price per square meter and the construction cost

estimate.
There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year.

The fair value measurement information for the investment properties

in accordance with HKFRS 13 as at 31 March 2018 is set out below.

(a) Valuation basis

As at 31 March 2018, the fair values of the investment properties
located in cities of Zhongshan, Yingkou and Jinggangshan have
been arrived on the basis of valuation carried out on that date by
independent qualified professional valuers not connected to the
Group. The valuation of Zhongshan, Yingkou and Jinggangshan
was arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction

prices for similar properties at similar location.

(b) Leasing arrangements

Investment properties located in Yingkou and Jinggangshan,
PRC are leased to tenants under long-term operating leases with
rentals payable monthly. Investment properties located in cities of
Zhongshan and Jinggangshan were under refurbishment as at 31

March 2018.

P

15 BE Pk (&)

A5 L D ) SRR el S 4R 3
2T R BER R BLEE - it L% 5%
B 3 2 W IR P 2 UM B 0 A A
ﬁo

B W — B 89 4 ek R AR =
B SFAE o A R 2 b [ 2 T EL A 36
ZBHORMERNFERHARZRE
H B o DAl 9 2 TR R A R
B 75 R AET R B Al 51 3 S A

i A6 A 7 4 1 Sl 8 5 ) o

2 HE A T 5 o R U SR 1 3R T PR 3k 4
BEWER_F - N\F=ZA=F—HZA
A B RORH RS -

(a) il i 2% ¥t

M= NEZH=1+—H it
Wy s 2 E R LT
LY A/ R PRE Y VN E T 2
90 B L 0 O A B A A B
% H AT Z AR e T
T KR T S A TS
2B EZE U EZ TS
JRR AR

(b) ALK HE

AL v R R L B
YT R B M ST
o 3% WCBUR 4 o A il R R
FHIWZREWER TN
F=ZA =+ HIEAERH -

EERKEBEGRAA
2017/2018 F#k ]-3 7




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

16 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 16 o B Pk
FOR SALE
2018
SR )\
HK$’000
T
As at 1 April 2017 HoE—-HLENMA—H -
\ Additions WHE 89,602
\\'\\h Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 19) Wit e — ] R e A ] (B 19) 375,072
\\' Reclassified from property, plant and H 3 ~ W5 e s A 9T 43
\\\ prop
\ A equipment (Note 14) (Note a) (FRE14) (P REa) 75,232
\‘\ Exchange difference [ B8, 5% % 28,895
\
\ As at 31 March 2018 RoE-NFE=ZA=1+—H 568,801
\ Properties under development for sale comprise: ER R 9y 0k
Construction costs and capitalised expenditures S AR I B AL B 497,879
Finance cost capitalised T & A B il A 20,260
Exchange difference [ 56, 2% %A 50,662
As at 31 March 2018 R-F—-N\NFE=H=+—H 568,801
Amounts are expected to be completed: T 56 BT i K O
Within the normal operating cycle included under 7 1% & % 4 1 4 5 A
current assets i) 568,801
Beyond the normal operating cycle included under A 1E % & % 78 #] 45+ A
non-current assets IR =
As at 31 March 2018 R-F—-N\NFE=H=Z+—H 568,801
Note: Fff 1 -
(a)  Asat 31 March 2018, the Group changed its intention on the purpose of (@) WM-F—NE=ZA=1+—H KEHAK
carparks and certain portion of the commercial area in the Weihai project B T JE 5 8 R Ay 1A R 3 s
to sale. Therefore, related net carrying amounts have been reclassified 20 I s B S A o R - M B IR
from property, plant and equipment to properties under development for [ AGASE/E B Y & R
sale. BB ERPHE-
(b)  The amount of properties under development for sale and expected to be (b)  TH R 7 A8 48— 4E DL W IE] 1) 1
recovered after more than one year is HK$568,801,000 (2017: Nil). By 2 HR0E % 568,801,0008 7T (.
F— L) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
22 /N 2 ks
A B R M ()
For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE
17 W& 2 )
PFHIIR =R NEE A=A
4 24 7] 4% Lo

17 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2018.

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

Principal activities and

Particulars of issued

share capital/registered capital

Proportion of
ordinary shares

Name kind of legal entity place of operations and debt securities  held by the Group (%)
IR/ CHAT A/ YA B AGH
#ik Stk g FEEH R BN B RZAN BRI (%)
Crown Global Opportunity Samoa, Investment holding in Samoa 1,000 ordinary shares of *100%
Investment Limited i 7 T8 PR B 0 M US$1 each
EEEREIREARAA Limited liability company 1,000/ % Ji i
HIRAR 1R 782w
Crown International Investment Corp. Samoa, Investment holding in Samoa 1,000 ordinary shares of *100%
i P T JE B US$1 cach
Limited liability company 1,000/ 4 % 1 {8
HIRAR 1R 7E 2 B m I
Crown Entertainment Corporation Samoa, Investment holding in Samoa 1,000,000 ordinary shares of *100%
S 4R A AT R e P A % 4 M US$1 each
Limited liability company 1,000,000/ 45 1t 1 {E
AT 1Eu 2 Hm
Crown Finance Holdings Limited Samoa, Investment holding in Samoa 1,000 ordinary shares of *100%
B hPE RA RA R i P A i P i 4 M US$1 each
Limited liability company 1,00008¢ 5 M i
AT 1902 il
Crown Tianhe Resources Limited Hong Kong,  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
SR ERA WA i ER R AR 10,0003 7
Limited liability company
HIAH
World Opal Investment Limited Hong Kong,  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
HREEARAR Hil T 7 B 7 1 M 10,0007 7%
Limited liability company
HIRAH
Crown Land Corp. Limited Hong Kong,  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
SRR HA BT i TE T W B B 1 M 10,0009 7
Limited liability company
HIRAR
Zhongshan Hualian Industrial PRC, Property investment in PRC Registered capital of 100%
Development Corporation Limited H e B ¥ HK$50,000,000
o oLy T S R A LA W] 2 Wholly owned FE M 750,000,000 72
foreign enterprise
Ohik B
Crown International Resort Limited Hong Kong,  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
FRIBEEARA R Hi TR B T M 10,0009 78
Limited liability company
HIRAR

P
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M (80)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F— NFE=H =+—H ILFJF

17 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17 W& A v (%)

140

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

Principal activities and

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered capital

Proportion of

ordinary shares

Name kind of legal entity place of operations and debt securities  held by the Group (%)
[V NVe AR L] CHATBA A R ARG
i R Ha s ER-ES Y T:E2F ] MH R Z N BB (%)
GRS RAR PRC, Provision of Registered capital of 100%
Y financial advisory service in PRC RMB10,000,000
Limited liability company 7 F R R0 5 L AL AR A R 10,000,00078
HIAT
T S v S PRC, Dormant Registered capital of 91.5%
ARAT B EEs ] RMB13,000,000
Limited liability company Al A A R 13,000,0007C
HIRAF
“U” Inns (Yingkou) PRC, Property investment in PRC Registered capital of 100%
Hotel Management i e B AR B ¥ HK$25,600,000
Corporation Limited Wholly owned k& A225,600,0003 76
TREN RS (8 1) 8 6 M A W) foreign enterprise
Ohit A
“U” Inns & Hotel (Jing Gang Shan Shi) PRC, Hotel investment in PRC Registered capital of 100%
Limited B T B A R R RMBS50,000,000
TREZREE G (IR L) A RA R Wholly owned LA AN R #50,000,00078
foreign enterprise
Ohit A
Jumbo China Investment Group Samoa, Investment holding in Samoa Registered capital of 100%
Limited B T B P e R M HK$15,600,000
Limited liability company REA A 15,600,000% 7C
HIRAR
Jumbo China Investment Limited Hong Kong, Dormant Registered capital of 100%
ik ek HK$10,000
Limited liability company AL A 10,000% 7C
HIRAR
L R R R A A PRC, Hotel and property Registered capital of 100%
bl investment in PRC RMBA425,620,000
Wholly owned FEMERETE R AR AR425,620,00078
foreign enterprise
Ohik A

their Chinese names.

-\
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B R M Rk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS

18

af G 5 B

2018 2017

- NE ZFE b

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T-#o0

At 1 April BHA—H 700 1,128

Disposal during the year FENHE (700) -

Exchange difference [ 58, 2% % - 13

Impairment loss charged to consolidated statement A& AETERERZ

of comprehensive income (Note 6) WAE G (P EEo) - (441)

At 31 March W=H=+—H - 700
Note: Fff 5k

Available-for-sale financial assets in prior year represent unlisted club debentures
of golf clubs which are denominated in RMB and have been disposed during the

year.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 13 September 2016
(the “Agreement Date”) (together with a series of supplementary
agreements dated 13 December 2016, 13 March 2017, 13 April 2017,
30 June 2017 and 31 August 2017) entered into between Crown
International Investment, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Good Wealth. Good Wealth agreed to sell and Crown
International Investment agreed to purchase the entire issued share
capital of Jumbo China (together with its subsidiary, the “Jumbo
China Group”), a company incorporated in Samoa, for the issue and
allotment, credited as fully paid, of a total of 260,000,000 new shares
(the “Consideration Shares”) of the Company. The principal activities
of the Jumbo China Group is property development and investment in

the PRC.

19

P

AR AT B B A A A IR T R T
KA SR A7 T 2% - LA R RHE - B R
A H A o

XA b

¥ Crown International Investment (4%
A Z 2 E W E A ) B Good
Wealth? “Z—ANFENA+=H ([
H ) W7 or 2 B8 bk (LI H 0% —
F-AFETZA+T=H ZF-LE=
H+=0 -ZF—-t#HA+=H =
ZF-tEAA=ZTHEZZ-LEN
AZ+t—HZ—RFH s #) > Good
Wealth[i] 7 i £ 1ii Crown International
Investmencli] 7 i B Jumbo China (7
[ 3G B} J& 2 B % 4% 2% [Jumbo China%g
1) O g e i G i an 2 Al ) 2 &2
R T B AT B A - AR DL B AT S E B 3
260,000,000/8 AR % R 2 A2 7 Hi
ety (AR B 1) A A o Jumbo China
S TS o T v R S SR R
YT S

EERKEBEGRAA
2017/2018 F#k ]-4 ]-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

19 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 19 X554 Pk (41)
On Agreement Date, the number of Consideration Shares was bk OB AR R 2 ME IR 2
determined with reference to the Company’s then share price, with 2 A\ E] H R 2 AR S - SRR A
the total consideration amounted to HK$500,000,000. As a result of 500,000,000%5 7G o H A #% R 5 Z 56 AL
the delay on the completion of this transaction, the Consideration B RERmR =F—tFELA A
Shares were issued at HK$1.29 per share on 14 September 2017 (T58 0 H 8 1) DLAE Be1.29% 0 8 47 »
(the “Completion Date”), with the consideration amounted to RAH 45335,400,000% 70 (311 B3 B 47 B
HK$335,400,000, net of issuance costs. As a result of the decrease ) o ph N 10k B YD B 58 i BB 1R > %
in share price between the Agreement Date and the Completion D ERE T W > REERERE —F— \F
Date, a gain on bargain purchase amounted to HK$116,001,000 was EAET—HIEREZ GG 2R mRE
\\"‘-1’*}; recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of comprehensive it 2 Wi e I 2 WL 25116,001,000 % 7T ©
\\\\\ income for the year ended 31 March 2018.
& \\\\ The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the Jumbo Jumbo China%E 7 58 5% H B 2 BT 5% B
\:\- \ China Group as at the Completion Date were as follows: BEMABEZATFHWNT
'\ Fair value
\ recognised on
Notes acquisition
7 VAL i I Tl
i3 Z A
HK$'000
Tl
Property, plant and equipment W RE Mok i 14 163,128
Properties under development for sale FrOi B B 3 16 375,072
Cash and bank balances B4 T SRAT A5 8,939
Other receivables JHE Al R W5k T 96,056
Entrusted loan ZRb R (175,500)
Other payables and accruals Al A5 kR R T R (7,099)
Deferred income tax liabilities AR AL JT A5 B AL (9,195)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value R Gk ) B A
HAFE 451,401
Satisfied by: A7
Consideration Shares issued and allotted, credited — #47 J L 38 A MR 51 7 B2 2
as fully paid PR ey 335,400
(116,001)
At 31 March 2018, the Group has not finalised the fair value N_E - NE=ZH=+—H  REH W
assessments for net assets acquired from the business combination KRR EFE S HEIPESZ TS E
activities. The relevant fair values of net assets stated above are on a ZAVPEFIAG e Pk OB R EEZMH

provisional basis. B P 75 322 B IR Rk e EHAE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ao U 5 R W (f)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

19 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 19 R85 & BF (#0)
The Group incurred transaction costs of approximately HK$802,000 74 45 ) 7 Ot T WAL = T A £9802,000
for this acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and are WL G A G ER B BA KX

20

included in other expenses in the profit and loss.

8 - M HE AR 5 2 AP S o

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the business combination is EHAGHZBEERESHMT :
as follows:
HK$’000
Tilhse
Cash consideration paid CAF Bl e AR .
Cash and bank balances acquired O Wi B 4 T SR AT 45 B 8,939
Net cash and cash equivalents acquired and WA T 3 5 A\ N ) 2
included in cash flows from investing activities HEeEReZlekBL&%
(CEZRE R 8,939
TRADE RECEIVABLES 20 B 5 ME WOk
2018 2017
—2-N\E R
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T F it
Trade receivables B 5y e Wk e - 8,475
As at 31 March 2018, there were no trade receivables. As of 31 March Ro-F—NE=ZH=+—H HEX
2017, trade receivables of HK$8,475,000 with credit terms of 30 days SEBGKE -M&KE _-F—LHE=H
are past due but not impaired. This related to an independent customer Z+—H - FEBR30H BaEyHE R
for whom there is no significant financial difficulty. The ageing analysis {8 2 ¥ %) RE WUk T 8,475,000 7T » % K
by past due date of trade receivables is as follows: TE 2 B — 4 S TR A TR Bk 2 B Sn % P
R o B 5 MECHKIE s ] H Rz
IREA ST T -
2018 2017
ZR-NE R4
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xL ToT
Past due but not impaired: 28 391 R Uk £
61 — 90 days past due mPAs+—=2Nt+H - 8,475
The carrying amount of trade receivables is denominated in RMB. B S I WLk VE W T L DA N R A

EERKEBEGRAA
2017/2018 F#k 143

P —




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 0 s e MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F— NFE=H =+—H ILFJF

21

D2

144

OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS 21 oAb HE WOk OB ~ A KO B
AND DEPOSITS [/
2018 2017
N ZFE b
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T T
Non-current IR B
Rental deposit A4 1,209 =
1,209 -
Current )
Other receivables Al JE W R JE 378 375
Prepayments and deposits T AT K Je 2 4 1,744 3,155
2,122 3,530
3,331 3,530

The carrying amounts of other receivables and deposits approximate their fair

values and are denominated in the following currencies:

St I8 VAR T e 3 A 2 MR T L SR A - i

A M DU B B R R

2018 2017
SR NE LA
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T¥#on
HK$ ot 1,790 1,639
RMB N 1,541 1,891
3,331 3,530

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22 & RBE&5EY
2018 2017
SR -NE R LA
HK$’000 HK$°000
T o T
Bank balances SRAT 4E AR 43,584 85,285
Cash on hand FHB 4 1 4
43,585 85,289

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2017/2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ao W 5 AR W (7))

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents approximate

22 BlE RBLE&FHY (8)

B4 e B4 S AT 2 MR T A B ~F- (L

their fair values and are denominated in the following currencies: A o MDA B £ W R
2018 2017
—F N\ —F b
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T# T
HKS$ #IT 15,130 3,082
RMB NG 27,983 81,734
United States dollars Fit 472 473
43,585 85,289

As at 31 March 2018, cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$27,982,000 (2017: HK$81,732,000) respectively are denominated
in RMB and deposited with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency in the international market. The conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies and remittance of RMB out of the PRC
is subject to the rules and regulations of exchange control promulgated

by the government of the PRC.

WoE—-NE=ZH=+—H>
#127,982,000% 0 (=& — L4
81,732,000%5 70 ) Z Bl 4 K& Bl 4 % EH W
DA B ¥ B 8 R v B 2 SRAT A7 8o
HET > AR AR e BB i 8 1 b
e o N N DS B4 2 AN W B N IR W
H e (38 2 5% e B AT 22 A A o R
HI) K B3 45 e B i

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23 BB R A TG EHZ

THOUGH PROFIT OR LOSS L A
2018 2017
% oAE | B
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tt

Short-term investment measured at fair value BB A AT EZ

through profit or loss Rk Sy 12,500 =

The short-term investment measured at fair value through profit or
loss is a wealth management product, denominated in RMB, which
expected rate of return of 3.4% at maturity. The return on wealth
management product is not guaranteed, hence its contractual cash
flows do not qualify for solely payments of principal and interest.
Therefore, it is measured at fair value through profit or loss. The

investment is not past due.

BMPBLA PHEG R Y RE R
—IE DA\ R B - R
T F) LS9 [ S 8 2 3. 49 o BHLEA A it A L
ST 1o Sl R R S W B A B
TR AR B G R S A A R A
o PRIt - R R R 0 O 4 R A S
At o A E AR ENH

EERKEBEGRAA
2017/2018 F#k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

24 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24 oAt BE A K D B ME wiT £ 4

2018 2017
—R-N\E R
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#L FH T
Non-current E/HI: 1]
Consideration payable — non-current portion JE A AR — I B 98 43
(Note a) (B iEa) - 198,906
Other payables — non-current portion (Note b) At B8 Ak R T — S B S0 43
(K 3Eb) - 157,334
Leasehold improvements payable LT 18 B A 3K 6,623 =
. e 6,623 ___ 356,240 _
\\\\\ Current HIB
\\ Property acquisition cost payable JRE A 3 WL I B AR 1,096 991
\.\ Consideration payable JRE A AR — B 301 5 43
\ — current portion (Note a) (Bt 5Ea) - 12,200
| Accrued construction cost JRE T A R AR 36,102 7,278
Accrued directors’ fee FEGTHE F A4 438 4,241
Accrued audit fee 5 A 1,400 1,250
Salary payable WA 37 4 442 1,941
Other payables — current portion (Note b) At JRE A 2k S — B 3918 43
(FF&ED ) 41,826 402
| Accrued legal and professional fee FEFH i R B 599 80
Accrued interest payable JE R S A R T 8,589 =
‘ Others Al 11,393 2,272
101,885 30,655
108,508 386,895
Note a: Fff 5Ea -
The amounts represented consideration payable in relation to the acquisition % ik T A0 WA I o L i S 0 U 3 BH A R
of the entire equity interest of Zhongshan Hualian Industrial Development 28 ] 2 4V B AR AT AR o SR T A G
Corporation Limited. The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable T~ G 8 B 3 B A2 A Ak Ak sk A O o
according to the agreed payment terms.
Note b: B 5k D -
The amount represented payable to Sino Oasis in relation to construction Ak JHFE B Sino Oasis TR A7 L 17 HE I £f 2&
service fees paid on behalf of Zhongshan Hualian Industrial Development B B AT B 2 ) S A 2 g 2 I 285 % vii B A Sino
Corporation Limited by Sino Oasis. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and OasisZ a3k I o %k JE Ly SEHRH ~ 40 8 I ¥ i
repayable according to the agreed payment terms. AT KA R -
The carrying amounts of the other payables and accruals approximate their fair Ol AR T B M £ 2 MR T B P
values and are denominated in the following currencies: SRR AV
2018 2017
—E N4 R b
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T T
HKS$ #ot 4,089 218,924
RMB N 104,419 167,971
108,508 386,895

146 Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2017/2018

WY




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

> 4
25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND 25 3B %E i 14 B W i L1 A
LIABILITIES
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a E G ¥ 8 WA T RER T A B BLIE
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current SS90 50 0 A E AR R - T 0 S 15
tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities G 7 B B — R SRR E HE BUR
relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority on either the JRE SRR T B = ] — AOBE A BR BT B 2 P
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to BB B > B R 4 AR
settle the balances on a net basis. The offset amounts are as follows: R > BV AT 208 A28 Pr 49 B0 4 S B £ £ B A
T - IREI BT -
2018 2017
ZF-NE ZFE LS
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tt
Deferred income tax assets 95 2 T 159 Bl A 870 -
Deferred income tax liabilities AR S iy A 5 £ A (430,373) (379,859)
(429,503) (379,859)
The components of deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) recognised MEREFE - NER_FT—LFE=H
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the movements Z4—H IR > 555 B IR OLER
during the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 are as follows: RZIEBEABEE, (AE) B &
HEEBHWTF :
Fair value Fair value
change of gain on
Accelerated investment acquisition of
depreciation Tax loss properties a subsidiary Total
B0 —
B¥WE BB 4 7l 2
Y BB R ATHEH AVHEA W
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T
Ac 1 April 2017 BHZF—-tENA—H - - (379,859) - (379,859)
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated statement FEA (kA
of comprehensive income SaemlEE 68 760 (334) - 494
Acquisition of a subsidiary B — ] B J 2 ) = = = 9,195) (9,195)
Exchange difference M 5t 2% 4 - 42 (40,357) (628) (40,943)
At 31 March 2018 BEF-NEZA=Z+—H 68 802 (420,550) (9,823) (429,503)

EERHEEER LA
2017/2018 F#k ]-47




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M (80)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F— NFE=H =+—H ILFJF

25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND 25 Y %t P £ B B A L £ 4
LIABILITIES (Continued) (47)
HK$’000
it
At 1 April 2016 PR -ANENH—H (363,289)
Charged to the consolidated statement of HBR B &5 A 2m KRR
comprehensive income (39,767)
Exchange difference [ 5t 2% 4 23,197
At 31 March 2017 H_F—LtF=ZA=+—H (379,859)
Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are as follows: RERZ BTG BEENT
2018 2017
R -NE R4
HK$’000 HK$’000

T#xT T o0
Unutilised tax losses A B F 2 B JE s 15 41,305 36,652
Accelerated depreciation allowances o 22 47 5 g 10 46

41,315 36,698
As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, all deferred tax assets and deferred tax R_F— ) ER R —-LE=H=Z1+—
liabilities are recoverable after more than 12 months. H - Ji G 38 2B B IE % i S 4t B IE A i

A A - A AR e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B R M Rk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Continued)

At 31 March 2018, the deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of
approximately HK$241,759,000 (31 March 2017: HK$217,136,000)
have not been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams to utilise such losses. Unrecognised tax losses amounted to
HK$225,113,000 (31 March 2017: HK$207,431,000) has no expiry
date and certain unrecognised tax losses amounted to HK$16,646,000
(31 March 2017: HK$9,705,000) expire within five years under the

current tax legislation of the respective jurisdictions.

25 3B %E P 3 B Y B 4

(%)

MR-F—-NE=ZH=+—H BB
HA241,759,0008 L (ZF—LHFE=
H=+—H:217,136,000%0) A H
% W B A B R s A A U R AT
TE M - WG R R A B I A E o R
T8 AH 0 W) o M I BLAT B 0 R
e 8 A6 JE 5 #8225,113,0008 7 (=&
—tHE=H=+—H:207,431,000%
70 ) N 8 JE i H - AT R e SR B
JEi 18 16,646,000 76 (ZF—LHE=H
=-+—H :9,705,000% & ) Bl i* H4E N
IR

BORROWINGS s £
2018 2017
A\ bk
HK$’000 HK$’000
T 0 T30
Entrusted loan R & 160,000 =
160,000 —

The carrying amount of the Group’s borrowing approximate to its fair

value and is denominated in RMB.

The borrowing is secured the Group’s land use right in Weihai, interest

bearing at 18% per annum and repayable on 24 July 2019.

Prior to entering the Group, M 2% R & A B AW (‘B
) , an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into an entrusted loan agreement with a subsidiary of China
HKBridge Holdings Limited (“China HKBridge”), an independent
third party, through China Everbright Bank pursuant to which B
[# #% obtains a loan in the amount of RMB150,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$187,500,000) for a term loan of 2 years. The borrowing is secured
by the Group’s land use right in Weihai, bears interest at 18% per
annum and repayable on 24 July 2019, to satisfy the obligations of the

construction project in works.

P

AR T A 5k 2 R T L B L PR
PN R GHE -

ik DA AR 55 B RS i 2 e i P AR 90
PR AR R 18 EEHE KA —F L
FEH M HMER-

BMAAR LB ARA R Z M EEE
B Jg A ) R IR R R B A BR A ]
(Tt 1 % ] ) 728 208 v 18 K AT B —
ZRASLE =07 (P B AE R A B ]
(M BRG] ) Z B A ) ) 5T E R ReE
ok il > TR UL - B R AT A N R
5 150,000,0007C (A 2 187,500,000¥%
JC ) YRR > B AR 4 WA o A A K DA
A A B = b R A AR - 3%
RIS F B AAR —F—IELH
ZTIYHAR DR ERE TRIEE Z
it

EERKEBEGRAA
2017/2018 F#k ]-49




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

150 Crown International Corporation Limited

Note a:

On 31 December 2017, the Company issued and allotted 310,000,000 new
shares at issue price of HK$1.08 each to a subscriber pursuant to a subscription
agreement entered into between the Company and the subscriber dated 20
September 2017 for cash constriction of HK$334,543,000, net of transaction
costs amounted to HK$257,000. The new shares were issued and allotted under
the general mandate granted to the Directors at the annual general meeting of
the Company on 7 September 2017 and rank equally among themselves and
with the existing shares in all respects.

Annual Report 2017/2018
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26 BORROWINGS (Continued) 26 5 8% (%)
On 19 January 2018, T HF B % entered into another loan agreement B FE—)\E—HTIuH - Bl s
with the same subsidiary of China HKBridge, pursuant to which B P G W A — M A R RT L S — I
I agreed to lend an amount of RMB22,000,000 (equivalent to K Tk ke > 95 UL - ¥ R ) e ] — Y
HK$27,500,000) to the same counterparty. The loan is interest bearing & A\ S BN R ¥22,000,0000C (#1%
at 18% per annum and repayable on 15 August 2018. Pursuant to the #27,500,000% 70 ) © 3% B K IRAEF] %18
agreement, both parties agree to offset the amount borrowed with the JEFHE R R —F—)E)NH T B
amount lent. 2 o AR B Z Wk o W1 A T M RS A
K IE BRAG R TE A o
Hence, the loan receivable is presented as an offsetting amount against F b > WS SAEAE RN EH S E
the borrowing. o
VLAY
\ 27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 AR
Number of
shares Share capital
By ¥ H JBe A
HK$’000
K T#L
\ Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: AT RSB
At 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 B F-ANENA—H K
—Z2—-tE=A=+—H 2,860,000,000 1,309,124
Issuance of shares in relation to acquisition of — Hfi W i — [l PH Jo§ 2 =] 847 Bt 1y
a subsidiary (Note 19) (Fi3E19) 260,000,000 335,400
Issuance of shares in relation to placement LS B AT B (K ika)
(Note a) 310,000,000 334,543
At 31 March 2018 R-Z-NE=ZH=+—H 3,430,000,000 1,979,067

Fff Fta -

W_F—bLE+H=Z+—H - WEARAF
2R A 2 —LENA
T H Rk AR A R R AT R
1.08¥5 G 7] % w2 Ji§ N\ B8 47 K i #$310,000,000
JBE 5T e A > Bl 4 AR AE £5334,543,0009 76 (£
R 5 AR 257,000 76 ) B B4 CAR 35
ARAFRZZ—CENA LHRITZ R
SR LR TER BT L
KA H Z M BB By 764 O =
[7] 45 Hiu A7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 28 HeRBE R
(a) Net debt reconciliation (a) 5B B
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements A% 15 5 B 5 7 30 T P £
in net debts for each of the periods presented. B 43 At i1 5 )
2018 2017
SR -NE R
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T# L T
Cash and cash equivalents Bl BB 48 43,585 85,289
Borrowings — repayable after one year — ik — — SRR AR — [ E R &
fixed interest rates (160,000) -
Net debt B (116,415) 85,289
Cash and cash equivalents Bl BB 458 43,585 85,289
Gross debt A (160,000) -
Net debt B (116,415) 85,289
Liabilities
from
financing
Assets activities
il 5 47
"\ FIE=EIy
Borrowings
due after
Cash 1 year Total
— AR
B4 B 3 A5k
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T AR Tt
Net debt as at R_-F—-tHE=A=Z1+—H
31 March 2017 Z FEH 85,289 - 85,289
Other non-cash movement/ HApbJE B &5 m)
acquisition of subsidiaries WA fi 6 g 2 ) 8,939 (175,500) (166,561)
Cash flows Bl & (51,897) 27,500 (24,397)
Foreign exchange adjustments A BEE T A% 1,254 (12,000) (10,746)
Net debt as at R_-F—-NE=ZH=Z1+—H
31 March 2018 ZEEH 43,585 (160,000) (116,415)

EERHEEER LA
2017/2018 F#k ]- 5 ]-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F— NFE=H =+—H ILFJF

29 COMMITMENTS

(a) Lease commitments

(i)

(ii)

152
Y

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2017/2018

Operating lease commitments — where the Group is the

lessor

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group had contracted

with tenants for the following minimum lease receivables:

29 7R

(@) RIERYE

(i)

AL E R BRI — ARG M 7%
HHEA

REF-NERZF L4
ZA=EtH ARG

1A VAT S A A T 8 ek O -
2018 2017
—®-NE R
HK$’000 HK$000
T Tt
Not later than 1 year AR —4F 6,045 3,431
Later than 1 year and not later than — 42 DL EAE R A A
5 years 23,028 12,270
Over five years R AR 11,781 889
40,854 16,590
Operating lease receivables represent future aggregate 2 FL I B WK AR AL
minimum lease receipts by the Group from non-cancellable P B e B B 26 2 A T A
operating leases of its investment properties. Typically, leases B RE AL B O Z AL R 2R
are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease term of nine to AR AR o — i = - MLAK
20 B+ L4 B < LI
FhEELTE-

Operating lease commitments — where the Group is the

lessee

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group had commitments

under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented

(ii)

ACE R AR — A 7
RN

REZF-NERZF—LH
ZA=EtH - ABEEMRES

premises, which fall due as follows: BEi¢ iy kS
WA Z A S AR I
T

2018 2017

R )N\E R

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#L AR

Not later than 1 year A — 4 5,994 6,161

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —4E P b AHOR 8 i AR 10,060 -

16,054 6,161

W\
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B R M Rk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has no outstanding
commitment (2017: Nil).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions were carried out with related parties during

the year.

Key management compensation

Key management includes directors and senior management. The
compensation paid or payable to key management for employee

services is shown below:

29 7R (41)

(b) BEAKNG

R NFEZA=+—H o A4
VO S A P AT R A (AR
) -

30 B )5 A S
4 SR OG0 7 HE AT 2 28 5 T

4 PIL e B

S P A A B -
1 B i85 O A i M o 3 B4 L -2 A 1
FIRE

2018 2017

—F-NE ZF-bE

HK$°000 HK$'000

T#x THT

Directors’ fee RS 3,822 5,120
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 59 4 S G At 5 3 0 B AR R 120 600
Pension costs — MPF TR B BRAR — 30 ) e A B 18 18
3,960 5,738

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year, the Group disposed four wholly-owned subsidiaries
to independent third parties for cash consideration of approximately
HK$1,070,000. The net gains on disposal and net cash inflow arising
from these disposals amounted approximately HK$302,000 and
HK$952,000 respectively.

31 i 45 H S 4 Wl

AR s AR E L=
W EEREAR B ENR
1,070,000%5 7T  H 8 W i 35 4 M % 45 Y
5 =R TE T B A M BL A TR N R4 B A 2
302,000% G 5 952,000% JC

EERKEBEGRAA
2017/2018 F#k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
w e B R L (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # £ —F— NF=H=—4—H I FF

32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 32 AR W) 2 B8R UL 3 e ik

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

fiis 5% 5

COMPANY
2018 2017
N ZFE B
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B ik T# T Tt
Assets ¥ i
Non-current assets I By
Investments in subsidiaries TR A 2 —E 86 7,833
W 86 7,833
\
\\\\ Current assets Ui Y
\ \ Other receivables, prepayments and L Al K T~ VLA Ak
& \\\ deposits V& 315 315
\'\‘ Amounts due from subsidiaries JFEE WAc B} JiEg A ] ik JE 1,523,989 581,958
\ \'\ Cash and cash equivalents B4 B &%5EY 5,472 517
1,529,776 582,790
1 TStalka et i 7 4 1529862 590,623
Equity B 2
Capital and reserves Y A B i B
Share capital Jie A< 1,979,067 1,309,124
Accumulated losses 2t g (a) (452,269) (739,950)
Total equity R 202 48 31 1,526,798 569,174
Current liabilities U RER
Other payables and accruals JE Atk W A 23K TE B HE T £ 2,978 5,871
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE A B g 2 ] ek JE 86 15,578
Total liabilities i 3,064 21,449
Total equity and liabilities B2t e 11 3 48 7 1,529,862 590,623

ARAFZHEEAMKRKEFTR R
—J\EARH I e > i T IIA
TREEFTHEE

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of

Directors on 29 June 2018 and was signed on its behalf

Mr. MENG Jin Long Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon

A e A B4k o 2
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
FR 17 B4 #
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E —F—/NFE=H=—+—HIFFESE

32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 32 AN ) 2 B8R LR B bk

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE fhi st g (%)
COMPANY (Continued)
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (a) AN W) 2 il i 58 )
Accumulated
losses
|59 7Fic|
HK$ 000
Foo
At 1 April 2016 P_F—ANFENHA—H (709,755)
Loss for the year A 1R (30,195)
At 31 March 2017 R-F—-tLHE=ZH=Z+—H (739,950)
Profit for the year AN ¥ A 287,681
At 31 March 2018 R-F—-NE=ZH=Z+—H (452,269)

EERHEEER LA
2017/2018 F#k ]- 55

P



Financial Summary

S 25 ik 2

The following is a summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the A 55 T 7 dp e LA W O P & o S AT O e

last five financial periods. mEe
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
“R-NE ZFR-nF ZR-AE ZF-LF | SR AE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TH#T T#T T#T T#T T#T
Revenue Wi 5,981 3,632 3,514 12,024 4,995

(Loss)/profit before income tax B B 7 8 i

(E#) /%A (39,459) 161,209 218,764 123,300 109,610
Income tax expense Fi e B B 52 (1,292) (6,415) (46,498) (41,960) (895)
(Loss)/profit for the year N (BR) /A (40,751) 154,794 172,266 81,340 108,715

The following is a summary of the total assets and liabilities of the Group as AEAMR R —NE-ZFE—HF ZF
at 31 March 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018. —AE-ZRE-LERZF-NEZA
E=t—HZEEAME R AR T -

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
SER-E CR-RE SE A “R kg ZB-NE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000

SR Tt T F#on Tt

Total assets W e 501,198 2,400,427 1,962,452 1,984,419 2,864,473
Total liabilities A E A (540,891) (1,634,330) (748,941) (768,836) (702,044)
Total (deficit)/equity (&) /HEss % (39,693) 766,097 1,213,511 1,215,583 2,162,429
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